
1 
 

 
 

 
VILLAGE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

REGULAR MEETING NOTICE/AGENDA 
September 13, 2021 - 7:00 pm 

THE RICHARD T. FLICKINGER MUNICIPAL CENTER, COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
6101 CAPULINA AVE, MORTON GROVE, IL  60053 

 

COVID-19 NOTICE 
In accordance with the Illinois Open Meetings Act, all Village Board and Commission meetings are open 
to the public. This meeting can be viewed remotely via the live stream link found at: 
www.mortongroveil.org/stream. Pursuant to Governor Pritzker’s Executive Order 2021-20 all individuals 
are required to wear a mask when attending public Village meetings regardless of vaccination status. 
Individuals should not attend public meetings if they have tested positive for COVID-19, within the past 14 
days have been in contact with another person who has tested positive for COVID-19 during the past 14 
days, or have any symptoms associated with COVID-19.  

 
1. Call to Order  

 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
3. Roll Call 

 
4. Approval of Minutes – Regular Meeting – August 9, 2021 

    Special Meeting – August 25, 2021 
5. Special Reports  

a. Outstanding Neighbor Recognition:  Arthur “Bob” General 
      Presented by Community Relations Commissioner Anisa Laliwala 

 
6. Public Hearings – None 

 
7. Plan Commission Reports – None 
 
8. Residents’ Comments (agenda items only) 
 
9. President’s Report – Administration, Comprehensive Plan, Council of Mayors, 

Northwest Municipal Conference, Strategic Plan Committee 
 

a. Appointments to the Advisory Commission on Aging: 
1) Marilyn Sneider 
2) Josephine Meehan 
3) Hope Hornstein 

 

http://www.mortongroveil.org/stream


 2 

b. Reappointments to the Environment and Natural Resources Commission  
1) Christine Corelli 3-year term ending August 1, 2024 
2) Andrew Hoffman 3-year term ending August 1, 2024 

 
c. Appointment of Adjudication Hearing Officer Daniel Didech 

 
d. Proclamation - National Preparedness Month 

 
e. Proclamation – Constitution Week 

 
f. Resolution 21-59: Authorizing the Installation of Temporary Street Signs in the 7000 Block 

of Church Street in Morton Grove, Illinois to Honor Christina Curtis 
 

10. Clerk’s Report – Condominium Association, Strategic Plan Committee 
 
11. Staff Report  

a. Village Administration 
 

1) Notice of Public Hearing for Proposed Lincoln/Lehigh Redevelopment Project 
Area, to be held September 27, 2021, at 7:00 pm at the Richard T. Flickinger 
Municipal Center, Council Chambers, 6101 Capulina Ave, Morton Grove, Il 60053 

 
b. Corporation Counsel 
 

12. Reports by Trustees 
a. Trustee Grear – Police Department, Police Pension Bd, Police Facility Committee, 

Plan Commission/Zoning Board, Lehigh/Ferris TIF, Special Events Commission 
(Trustee Minx) 
 
1) Ordinance 21-07 (First reading): Approving a final Plat of Subdivision and 

Accepting Certain Improvements for the Beckwith Crossing Subdivision at 6729 
and 6733 Beckwith Road in Morton Grove, Illinois.  

 
b. Trustee Khan – IT, Legal Department, Traffic Safety Commission, Emergency 

Management Agency (Trustee Travis) 
 

c. Trustee Minx – Finance Department, Finance Advisory Commission, Appearance 
Commission, Capital Projects, (Trustee Grear) 
 

d. Trustee Thill – Advisory Commission on Aging, Family and Senior Services 
Department, SWANCC, Building Department, Chamber of Commerce, Water 
Commission (Trustee Witko) 
 

e. Trustee Travis – Community Relations Commission, Fire Department, Fire Pension 
Board, RED Center, Fire and Police Commission, NIPSTA (Trustee Khan)  
 

f. Trustee Witko – French Market, Public Works Department, Community and 
Economic Development Department, Economic Development Commission, 
Environment and Natural Resource Commission, Dempster Street Corridor Plan, 
Sawmill Station TIF (Trustee Thill) 
 



 3 

1) Resolution 21-55: Authorizing a Task Order with Ciorba Group, Inc. for Albert 
Davis Water Main Improvement Project  
 

2) Resolution 21-56: Authorization for the Execution of Contract with the Illinois 
Department of Transportation for Maintenance of Traffic Signals 
 

3) Resolution 21-57: Formalizing the Village’s Endorsement for the Project 
Development of a Pedestrian Facility along Oakton Street    
 

4) Resolution 21-58: Authorizing the Purchase of One New International Dump 
Truck with Spreader and Snowplow from Rush Truck Center of Springfield, 
Illinois 
 

13. Other Business   
 

14. Presentation of Warrants – $887,262.58 (August 23, 2021) 
           $310,941.00 (September 13, 2021) 

15. Residents’ Comments  
 

16.  Adjournment  



MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE PRESIDENT 
AND THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE 

RICHARD T. FLICKINGER MUNICIPAL CENTER COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
AUGUST 9, 2021 

CALL TO ORDER 

I. Village President Dan DiMaria convened the Regular Meeting of the Village Board at 7:00 p.m.
in the Council Chambers of Village Hall and led the Board and assemblage in the Pledge
of Allegiance.

He then asked for a moment of silence to honor a fallen Chicago Police Officer; her death
occurred yesterday.

II. Village Clerk Eileen Harford called the roll. Present were Trustees Bill Grear, Saba Khan, Rita
Minx, John Thill, Connie Travis, and Janine Witko.

III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Mayor DiMaria asked for an approval of the Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of July 26, 
2021. Trustee Minx moved to accept the Minutes as presented, seconded by Trustee Khan.  
Motion passed unanimously via voice vote. 

Mayor DiMaria thanked Trustee Minx for presiding at the July 26th meeting in his absence. 

IV. 

1. 

a. 

b. 

c. 

SPECIAL REPORTS 

Outstanding Neighbor Presentation 

Mayor DiMaria introduced Community Relations Commissioner Anisa Laliwala to present the 
Commission’s Outstanding Neighbor Award tonight to Prasan Fernando.  

Ms. Laliwala explained that the mission of the Community Relations Commission (CRC) is to  
foster, encourage, and promote positive relations among all Morton Grove residents of all ages, 
genders, races, creeds, national origins, and economic and educational levels. She said that,  
during the pandemic, many people experienced or witnessed others performing extraordinary 
acts of kindness, which gave the Commission the idea for the Outstanding Neighbor Award  
program.  

Ms. Laliwala stated that the Outstanding Neighbor program gives residents the opportunity to 
acknowledge one (or several) of their neighbors who have made a positive difference in their 
neighborhood. Tonight’s recipient, Prasan Fernando, was nominated by two of his neighbors:  
Noel Lorenzana and Senthil Avudainayagam. 



Minutes of August 9, 2021 Board Meeting 

2 

IV. 

d. 

d. 

f. 

g. 

SPECIAL REPORTS (continued) 

Senthil said of Prasan that “he is a wonderful neighbor who hosts block parties in the summer, 
connecting neighbors to each other, and also helps with questions on home maintenance.” 
Noel nominated Prasan, because “he is an exceptional person who bring neighbors together. He 
is always smiling and greeting people with a friendly wave. He often helps his elderly neighbors.” 

Mayor DiMaria presented Prasan with a special pin, a pen, a certificate, and a gift card as a  
token of appreciation from the Village Board and the CRC. He noted that Prasan is the fifth  
recipient of the Outstanding Neighbor award since the program’s inception. The mayor thanked 
Prasan for “making our town a little better” and told him, “You make our Village slogan come to 
life.” He also thanked the CRC for doing a wonderful job. 

Mayor DiMaria, Trustee Travis, CRC Chairperson Arcie Pimentel, and Commissioner Laliwala 
gathered at the podium with Prasan and his nominators for photos while the Board  
congratulated them. 

Ms. Laliwala noted the CRC is an all-volunteer commission of the Village, adding that the  
Commission is always looking for new members. The CRC meets the second Tuesday every 
month at 6:30 p.m. Meetings are held at Village Hall in the second floor conference room.  
The next meeting is tomorrow night and all are welcome. 

V. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

NONE 

VI. PLAN COMMISSION REPORTS 

NONE 

VII. RESIDENTS’ COMMENTS (Agenda Items Only) 

NONE 

VIII. 

1. 

2. 

PRESIDENT’S REPORT 

Mayor DiMaria encouraged non-vaccinated individuals to do a courtesy to others by wearing 
a mask, and reminded everyone that non-vaccinated people are required to wear a face  
covering when in Village facilities. He said, “Let’s get through this together!” 

Mayor DiMaria applauded the success of the Morton Grove Police Department’s “National Night 
Out,” held last Tuesday, August 3, 2021. An estimated 1,500 people attended the free event. 
He said that the MGPD takes the lead with this, but all the Village departments took part in it 
and helped showcase the services the Village provides to its residents.  



Minutes of August 9, 2021 Board Meeting 

3 

VIII. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

PRESIDENT’S REPORT (continued) 

Mayor DiMaria thanked everyone who attended, because without participation, the event 
wouldn’t be a success. He also thanked the Village personnel who attended and helped make 
this the biggest and best “National Night Out” yet. 

Mayor DiMaria said that the Niles Township School Supply Distribution, held Thursday,  
August 5, was a great success in providing school supplies to eligible students so they could 
have a wonderful start to their school year.  

Mayor DiMaria noted that the Village will hold a 20th Anniversary Commemoration of 9/11 on 
Saturday, September 11, at 9:00 a.m. at the flag plaza in the Civic Center parking lot. It will  
feature a ceremony with the Fire and Police Departments’ Honor Guards. 

Mayor DiMaria said, also on September 11, the Environment and Natural Resources Commission 
(ENRC) will hold a Sustainability Expo from 10:00 a.m. to 2:30 p.m. in the Civic Center parking lot 
next to the French Market. The Expo will feature over 30 exhibits from local businesses and  
community organizations providing eco-friendly services and opportunities for Morton Grove  
residents and businesses. Mayor DiMaria said one of the features will be an electric car show, 
with electric vehicles from Tesla, Audi, Volkswagen, and more. There will be giveaways, as well 
as information on native plants, composting, solar panels, battery-powered and electric tools, 
organic lawn care, and electric bicycles. He encouraged everyone to come and commended the 
ENRC for providing what promises to be a great Expo! 

Lastly, Mayor DiMaria reminded everyone that the 2021-2022 Village vehicle sticker must be 
properly displayed on your vehicle(s) by Wednesday, September 1, 2021. 

IX. CLERK’S REPORT 

Clerk Harford had no report this evening. 

X. 

A. 

1. 

a. 

STAFF REPORTS 

Village Administrator: 

Mr. Czerwinski presented Resolution 21-53, Fixing the Time and Place for a Public Hearing to 
Consider the Approval of a Redevelopment Plan and Project Area for the Lincoln/Lehigh  
Redevelopment Project Area, and the Implementation of Tax Increment Allocation Financing 
Therefor, and Convening a Joint Review Board.  

He explained that this Resolution will authorize the convening of a Joint Review Board meeting 
on August 26, 2021, at 3:00 p.m. at Village Hall. 



Minutes of August 9, 2021 Board Meeting 

4 

X. 

A. 

b. 

STAFF REPORTS (continued) 

Village Administrator: (continued) 

This Resolution also sets September 27, 2021, at 7:00 p.m. at Village Hall as the time and place 
for a public hearing to consider the establishment of the Lincoln/Lehigh TIF District. The Village 
will provide notice of the public hearing in the August 12, 2021 edition of the Morton Grove 
Champion as required by law. 

Trustee Minx moved to approve Resolution 21-53, seconded by Trustee Witko. 

Motion passed: 6 ayes, 0 nays. 

Tr. Grear  aye Tr. Khan          aye    Tr. Minx           aye 
Tr. Thill        aye    Tr. Travis      aye             Tr. Witko  aye 

Mayor DiMaria noted that this is a “next step” in moving Morton Grove forward. 

B. Corporation Counsel:

Corporation Counsel Liston had no report this evening.

XI. 

A. 

TRUSTEES’ REPORTS 

Trustee Grear: 

Trustee Grear had no formal report, but wanted to do a “commercial” for the upcoming “Labor 
Days” event. The two-day event won’t replace Morton Grove Days, but he said it will be fun!  
It will be held at 6140 Dempster Street on Saturday, September 4 from 4:30 p.m. to 11:00 p.m. 
and on Sunday, September 5 from 4:30 p.m. to 9:30 p.m. There will be a beer garden, live music, 
food trucks, and, thanks to the Morton Grove Park District, there will be children’s activities as 
well. There will also be fireworks on Sunday beginning at 9:15pm. 

B. Trustee Khan:

Trustee Khan had no report this evening.

C. Trustee Minx:

Trustee Minx had no report this evening.



Minutes of August 9, 2021 Board Meeting 

5 

XI. 

D. 

TRUSTEES’ REPORTS (continued) 

Trustee Thill: 

Trustee Thill had no formal report, but wanted to extend his thanks to the MGPD for the  
“National Night Out” celebration. He saw a lot of young families in attendance and said he  
really felt good about seeing so many young kids enjoying themselves. It was a great event! 

E. 

1. 

a. 

2. 

Trustee Travis: 

Trustee Travis presented Resolution 21-50, Authorizing the Purchase of Genesis Extrication 
Equipment Through Equipment Management Company (EMC). 

She explained that the Fire Department’s current extrication equipment needs to be replaced, as 
it is over 30 years old, does not meet contemporary rescue equipment operational needs, and  
is difficult to maintain due to the lack of replacement parts. Members of the Fire Department 
have conducted performance-based evaluations on extrication equipment from various  
manufacturers and have determined that Genesis Rescue Systems Extrication conventional  
hydraulic tools are the most appropriate to meet the Department’s needs. Equipment Managing 
Company (EMC) is the sole source vendor for Genesis Rescue Extrication tools in the area, and 
has quoted a price for the needed equipment in the amount of $34,895. 

Trustee Travis moved, seconded by Trustee Grear, to approve Resolution 21-50. 

Motion passed: 6 ayes, 0 nays. 

Tr. Grear  aye Tr. Khan          aye    Tr. Minx           aye 
Tr. Thill        aye    Tr. Travis      aye             Tr. Witko  aye 

Trustee Travis noted that the Community Relations Commission’s quarterly photo contest is  
under way. The theme is “Summer in Morton Grove.” She encouraged people to take pictures  
of their favorite summertime activities and submit them. More information on the photo contest 
and how to submit photos can be found on the photo contest page on the Village’s website. 

F. 

1. 

a. 

Trustee Witko: 

Trustee Witko presented Resolution 21-51, Authorizing a Tsk Order With Ciorba Group, Inc. For 
Construction Engineering for Sawmill Station Right-of-Way Improvements. 

She explained that Sawmill Station Shopping Center improvements approved by the Village  
required certain improvements to Dempster Street, including, but not limited to replacing traffic 
signals at Dempster Street and Athletic Drive, and realigning a non-signalized intersection with 
Birch Avenue. The Village issued a permit and needs to inspect these improvements. 



Minutes of August 9, 2021 Board Meeting 

6 

XI. 

F. 

b. 

c. 

d. 

e. 

2. 

a. 

b. 

TRUSTEES’ REPORTS (continued) 

Trustee Witko: (continued) 

Trustee Witko said the engineering needs exceed the expertise and capacity of the Village’s 
Engineering Division staff. 

She noted that Resolution 18-08, approved in January of 2018, authorizes Village staff to  
negotiate task order contracts with Ciorba Group, Inc. for professional engineering services. 
Village staff has negotiated the scope of this work with Ciorba Group, Inc. to provide  
construction engineering services for this project in the amount of $23,188. The actual  
cost of this work will be reimbursed by the developer. 

Trustee Witko moved to approve Resolution 21-51, seconded by Trustee Travis. 

Trustee Thill asked if the traffic signal at Dempster and Athletic Drive was being removed. 
Mr. Czerwinski responded that it was being replaced and road widened. Additionally, Birch 
Avenue will be aligned to the entrance of the shopping center. 

Trustee Grear asked if the $23,188 was coming out of the Village’s General Fund or a different 
fund. Mr. Czerwinski said it would be coming out of the TIF account and then will be reimbursed. 

Mayor DiMaria called for the vote on Resolution 21-51. 

Motion passed: 6 ayes, 0 nays. 

Tr. Grear  aye Tr. Khan          aye    Tr. Minx           aye 
Tr. Thill        aye    Tr. Travis      aye             Tr. Witko  aye 

Next, Trustee Witko presented Resolution 21-52, Authorizing a Contract for a Power Supply 
Agreement for the Purchase of Electricity and Other Related Services. 

She explained that, from 2012 to 2017, the Village implemented an opt-out electricity supply 
aggregation program which allowed the Village to negotiate agreements for electricity at rates 
lower than those charged by Commonwealth Edison. The program was suspended from 2017 to 
2020 because the ComEd rate was the same or lower than bid rates submitted by suppliers. 
Pursuant to Resolution 20-35, the Village began participating in the Green Community  
Aggregation Program, whereby residents are charged the ComEd rate for electricity, but the 
electrical supply for certain residences will be purchased from suppliers who will also purchase 
and retire Renewable Energy Certificates sufficient to supply a portion of the Village’s electricity 
from renewable (“green”) power. 

Trustee Witko said this Resolution will authorize the Village to continue participating in the 
Green Community Aggregation Program, and enter into a new one-year contract with a new 
supplier. Residents may opt out and leave the program at any time, for any reason, and will  
never be charged an early termination fee. Rate payers who have already contracted with an-
other supplier on their own are not included in the program, and are subject to the terms of  
the private contract they executed. 



Minutes of August 9, 2021 Board Meeting 

7 

XI. 

F. 

c. 

TRUSTEES’ REPORTS (continued) 

Trustee Witko: (continued) 

Trustee Witko said residents will continue to be billed by ComEd. This program has zero 
additional costs to residents or to the Village. 

Trustee Witko moved, seconded by Trustee Travis, to approve Resolution 21-52. 

Motion passed: 6 ayes, 0 nays. 

Tr. Grear  aye Tr. Khan          aye    Tr. Minx           aye 
Tr. Thill        aye    Tr. Travis      aye             Tr. Witko  aye 

XII. 

a. 

b. 

c. 

d. 

e. 

OTHER BUSINESS 

Trustee Grear noted that he had attended the Moose Lodge’s picnic, and thanked the MGFD for  
being there, too. Several of the local residents worried about the proposed new Lincoln/Lehigh  
Redevelopment Project Area, wondering if their property was in danger of being bought.  
Trustee Grear said he assured this was not that type of project. He said, obviously, if someone 
comes up to a homeowner and offers to buy that person’s property, that person has every right 
to decline or accept the offer. But this project is not one where homes are being purchased.  
Trustee Grear felt it was important to “get the word out” about this, and asked Mr. Czerwinski to 
confirm that his response was correct. 

Mr. Czerwinski said Trustee Grear is correct. He said there are some vacant properties in the ar-
ea, and some dilapidated properties (from a mechanical and industry standpoint) in the area. The 
building at Lehigh and Main Street, for example, needs to come down. It is adjacent to some 
residential homes on Elm Street, but the Village is not looking to acquire those properties. 

If a developer wants to purchase those properties and assemble a parcel, that would be a private 
transaction between the property owner and the developer. It could be an opportunity for those 
homeowners as well.  

Mr. Czerwinski said the Village is planning to repair and improve the infrastructure in that area. 
Overhead wires will be relocated underground. The Village is looking at what it can do with the  
storm and sanitary sewers, and with water mains, to make the area better. The Village is also  
looking at making the train track/grade crossing safer and better—making it walkable, rideable, 
and more easily accessed. To do all this, the Village needs to be able to access TIF funds. He told 
Trustee Grear to let anyone asking questions about their property know that the Village is not 
coming after their property. 

Trustee Thill said he believed Trustee Grear was referring to the Village using eminent domain to 
acquire properties. Mr. Czerwinski said that is definitely not part of the plan. 



Minutes of August 9, 2021 Board Meeting 

8 

XIII. WARRANTS 

Trustee Minx presented the Warrant Register for August 9, 2021 in the amount of $761,733.70. 
She moved to approve the Warrant Register as presented, seconded by Trustee Khan. 

Motion passed: 6 ayes, 0 nays. 

Tr. Grear  aye Tr. Khan          aye    Tr. Minx           aye 
Tr. Thill        aye    Tr. Travis      aye             Tr. Witko  aye 

XIV. 

a. 

b. 

c. 

RESIDENTS’ COMMENTS 

Rudolf Vilk said he didn’t want to waste the Board’s time talking about journalist Eric Poders. He 
said he sent Mr. Poders a letter to respond to his critical remarks. 

Mr. Vilk asked Mayor DiMaria how long he has to wait for an answer to his questions. He said 
he’s asked the Board, Corporation Counsel, and the Village Administrator to no avail. Mr. Vilk 
said he emailed Corporation Counsel Liston asking for her written response and was told that 
she would not respond via email. He said he wants an official response, and pointed out that 
responding to residents was part of the Board’s job. 

Mayor DiMaria let Mr. Vilk know his allotted speaking time had ended, and commented, for the 
record, that he, Mr. Czerwinski, and Ms. Liston have sat down and spoken with Mr. Vilk.  
He noted that, as the Village President, he represents the members of the Village Board, so  
Mr. Vilk has, in fact, gotten a response from the “Board.” 

XV. ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business before the Board, Trustee Minx moved to adjourn the meeting, 
seconded by Trustee Grear.  

Motion passed: 6 ayes, 0 nays. 

Tr. Grear  aye Tr. Khan          aye    Tr. Minx           aye 
Tr. Thill        aye    Tr. Travis      aye             Tr. Witko  aye 

The meeting adjourned at 7:30 p.m. 



Minutes of August 9, 2021 Board Meeting 

9 

PASSED this 13th day of September 2021. 

Trustee Grear    __________ 

Trustee Khan 

Trustee Minx    __________ 

Trustee Thill    __________ 

Trustee Travis    __________ 

Trustee Witko    __________ 

APPROVED by me this 13th day of September 2021. 

Daniel P. DiMaria, Village President 
Board of Trustees, Morton Grove, Illinois 

APPROVED and FILED in my office this 14th day of September 2021. 

______________________________________ 

Eileen Scanlon Harford, Village Clerk 
Village of Morton Grove, Cook County, Illinois 

Minutes by Teresa Cousar 



MINUTES OF A SPECIAL MEETING OF THE PRESIDENT 
AND THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE 

RICHARD T. FLICKINGER MUNICIPAL CENTER COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
AUGUST 25, 2021 

Pursuant to proper notice in accordance with the Open Meetings Act, the special meeting was 
called to order at 6:00 p.m. by Mayor DiMaria who led the assemblage in the pledge of alle-
giance and called the roll. In attendance were: 

Elected Officials: Mayor Daniel P. DiMaria, Clerk Eileen Scanlon Harford, Trustees Bill 
Grear, John Thill, Rita Minx, AND Connie Travis .  

Absent: Trustee Saba Khan and Trustee Janine Witko 

Village Staff : Village Administrator Ralph Czerwinski, Assistant to the Village Adminis-
trator Tom Friel, Corporation Counsel Teresa Hoffman Liston,  

Guests: None 

Mr. Czerwinski presented Resolution 21-54: Amending Resolution 21-53 to Change the Time of the Joint 
Review Board Meeting for the Lincoln/Lehigh Redevelopment Project Area. He noted  

Mr. Czerwinski stated the purpose of this resolution is to comply with the Tax Increment Allocation Rede-
velopment Act, 65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-1 to amend Resolution 21-53 to change the time of the Joint Review 
Board meeting for the Lincoln/Lehigh Redevelopment Project Area from August 26, 2021 at 3:00 p.m. to 
August 26, 2021 at 10:00 a.m.   

He explained that on August 9, 2021, the Village Board approved and passed Resolution 21-53 which set 
the time and place for the first meeting of the Joint Review Board (“JRB”) of the Lincoln/Lehigh Redevel-
opment Project Area to Thursday August 26, 2021, at 3:00 p.m. On August 11, 2021, the Village, through 
its TIF consultants sent notice of the JRB meeting to all affected taxing districts. The notice was mailed at 
least fourteen (14) days but not more than twenty-eight (28) days before the August 26, 2021. JRB meeting 
as required by Section 11-74.4-5 of the TIF Act. However, the notice listed the time of the JRB meeting as 
Thursday August 26, 2021, at 10:00 a.m. instead of Thursday August 26, 2021, at 3:00 p.m. as set forth in 
Resolution 21-53. To comply with the requirements of Section 11-74.4-5 of the TIF Act and reconcile the 
discrepancy between Resolution 21-53 and the JRB meeting notice, it is necessary to amend Resolution 
21-53 to change the time of the JRB meeting to Thursday August 26, 2021, at 10:00 a.m.

Trustee Minx then moved to approve Resolution 21-54. The motion was seconded by Trustee Travis l and 
passed unanimously by a roll call vote.  

Trustee Minx then moved to adjourn the meeting. The motion was seconded by Trustee Grear and passed 
unanimously by a voice vote at 6:03 pm. 

Minutes By 

_______________________ 
Teresa Hoffman Liston 
Corporation Counsel 



Minutes of August 25, 2021 Board Meeting 

2 

PASSED this 13th day of September 2021. 

Trustee Grear    __________ 

Trustee Khan 

Trustee Minx    __________ 

Trustee Thill    __________ 

Trustee Travis    __________ 

Trustee Witko    __________ 

APPROVED by me this 13th day of September 2021. 

Daniel P. DiMaria, Village President 
Board of Trustees, Morton Grove, Illinois 

APPROVED and FILED in my office this 14th day of September 2021.

______________________________________ 

Eileen Scanlon Harford, Village Clerk 
Village of Morton Grove, Cook County, Illinois 



rorlamafion 

WHEREAS, National Preparedness Month (NPM) is recognized each September to promote family and 
community disaster and emergency planning now and throughout the year; and 

WHEREAS, promoting emergency preparedness in our families, workplaces, and communities can help 
minimize both physical and economic damage throughout the Village of Morton Grove should a disaster 
occur; and 

WHEREAS, the 2021 campaign for National Preparedness month is entitled "Prepare to Protect. 
Preparing for disasters is protecting everyone you love," and; 

WHEREAS, each week in September, the campaign will focus on a different aspect of preparedness: 
• During Week 1 (September 1-4) the focus is to "Make A Plan." and talk with friends and family

about how to communicate before, during, and after a disaster.
• During Week 2 (September 5-11 ), the focus is "Build A Kit" to encourage families to gather

supplies to last for several days after a disaster for everyone living in your home and to consider
the unique needs of each person or pet.

• During Week 3 (September 12-18), the focus is "Low-Cost, No-Cost Preparedness" to limit the
impacts of disasters, understand the risk of disasters in our area, check your insurance coverage
and learn how to make your home stronger in the face of storms and other common hazards.

• During Week 4 (September 19-25) the focus is "Teach Youth About Preparedness" to talk to
children about preparing for emergencies and what to do in case they are separated from their
parents.

WHEREAS, all residents of the Village of Morton Grove are encouraged to participate in preparedness 
activities and to review the Ready.gov website for more preparedness resources for families. 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Daniel P. DiMaria, Mayor of the Village of Morton Grove, Illinois, do herby 
proclaim September 2021 as 

NATIONAL PREPAREDNESS MONTH 

and encourage all Village employees, officials and residents to do everything possible to make 
preparedness a priority and work together, as a team, to ensure the Village is prepared for disasters and 
emergencies of any type. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and 
caused to be affixed the seal of the Village of Morton Grove. 

�� 
Daniel P. 'oiMaria, Village President 





Submitted by: Ralph E. Czerwinski, Village Administrator 
Reviewed by: Teresa Hoffman Liston, Corporation Counsel 

Legislative Summary 

Resolution 21-59 

AUTHORIZING THE INSTALLATION OF TEMPORARY STREET SIGNS IN THE 7000 BLOCK OF 
CHURCH STREET IN MORTON GROVE, ILLINOIS TO HONOR CHRISTINA CURTIS 

Introduced: September 13, 2021 

Purpose: To authorize the installation of temporary street signs in the 7000 block of Church Street in 
Morton Grove, Illinois to honor Christina Curtis 

Background: Christina Curtis lived on the 7000 block of Church Street for over 20 years. She was a 
student at Hynes Elementary School and Golf Junior Middle School where she made many 
friends, excelled in her coursework, and was the valedictorian of her class. She 
attended Niles North High School and was awarded a scholarship to Marquette University 
in Milwaukee, Wisconsin. Christina Curtis started dancing when she was 5 years and was a 
teacher working with beginning student dancers before she passed away at age 23. Christina 
Curtis personified the values of the Morton Grove Community and will always be 
remembered by her students, teachers, neighbors, friends, and most importantly her family 
as a warm, bright friendly person who found time for everyone she met. 

The Village has established a policy and a process for the application, approval and 
installation of temporary street signs to honor a former Morton Grove resident or employee 
who made a significant contribution to the Village. Norine Nagel has made a proper 
application to honor Christina Curtis with the installation of two honorary street signs in the 
7000 block of Church Street and the application was approved by at least 65% of the 
households on the 7000 block of Church Street. The Village Board has determined that it is 
fitting and proper to Christina Curtis by installing honorary street signs in her honor for a 
period of 12 months after installation. 

Departments 
Affected 

Public Works 

Fiscal Impact: Minimal 

Source of Funds: Application Fee 

Workload Impact: Public Works will install and maintain the signs as part of its regular duties 

Administrator 
Recommendation: 

Approval 

Second Reading: Not Required 

Special 
Considerations or 
Requirements: 

None 



RESOLUTION 21-59 

AUTHORIZING THE INSTALLATION OF TEMPORARY STREET SIGNS IN THE 7000 BLOCK OF 
CHURCH STREET IN MORTON GROVE, ILLINOIS TO HONOR CHRISTINA CURTIS  

WHEREAS, the Village of Morton Grove (the “Village”), located in Cook County, Illinois is a home 

rule unit of government under the provisions of Article 7 of the Constitution of the State of Illinois, can exercise 

any power and perform any function pertaining to its government affairs, including but not limited to the power 

to tax and incur debt; and 

WHEREAS, the Village has established a policy and a process for the application, approval and 

installation of temporary street signs to honor a former Morton Grove resident or employee who made a 

significant contribution to the Village; and  

WHEREAS, Norine Nagel has made a proper application to honor Christina Curtis with the installation 

of  two honorary street signs in the 7000 block of Church Street: and  

WHEREAS, the application was approved by at least 65% of the households on the 7000 block of 

Church Street; and   

WHEREAS, prior to her death on July 21, 2020, Christina Curtis lived on the 7000 block of Church 

Street for over 20 years. She was a student at Hynes Elementary School and Golf Junior Middle School where 

she made many friends, excelled in her coursework, and was the valedictorian of her class. She attended Niles 

North High School and was awarded a scholarship to Marquette University in Milwaukee, Wisconsin; and  

WHEREAS, Christina Curtis started dancing when she was 5 years and was a teacher working with 

beginning student dancers before she passed away at age 23; and 

WHEREAS, Christina Curtis personified the values of the Morton Grove Community and made a big 

impact on everyone she met. She will always be remembered by her students, teachers, neighbors, friends, and 

most importantly her family as a warm, bright friendly person who found time for everyone she met; and  

WHEREAS, the Village Board has determined that it is fitting and proper to Christina Curtis by 

installing honorary street signs in her honor for a period of 12 months after installation.  

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 

THE VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1:  The Corporate Authorities do hereby incorporate the foregoing WHEREAS clauses into 

this Resolution as though fully set forth herein thereby making the findings as hereinabove set forth. 

SECTION 2:  The Corporate Authorities of the Village hereby authorizes and directs the Village 

Administrator or his designee to fabricate and install two temporary street signs on the existing street or sign 

poles located in the 7000 block of Church Street to honor Christina Curtis. The signs shall read “Christina Court. 

Within twelve months after the signs are installed, they shall be removed and given to Norine Nagel.  



2 

SECTION 3:  Nothing in this Resolution shall be construed to change the official name or legal status of 

the street. 

SECTION 4:  This resolution shall be in full force and effect after its passage, approval and publication 

in pamphlet form as provided by law. 

PASSED THIS 13th day of September 2021. 

Trustee Grear 

Trustee Khan 

Trustee Minx 

Trustee Travis 

Trustee Thill 

Trustee Witko 

APPROVED BY ME THIS 13th day of September 2021. 
. 

________________________________ 
Daniel P. DiMaria, Village President 
Village of Morton Grove 
Cook County, Illinois 

ATTESTED and FILES in my office 
This 14th day of September 2021. 
. 

Eileen Scanlon Harford, Village Clerk 
Village of Morton Grove 
Cook County, Illinois 



Submitted by: Ralph E. Czerwinski, Village Administrator 
Reviewed by: Teresa Hoffman Liston, Corporation Counsel 
Prepared by: Zoe Heidorn  

Legislative Summary 

Ordinance 21-07 

APPROVING A FINAL PLAT OF SUBDIVISION AND ACCEPTING CERTAIN IMPROVEMENTS FOR THE 
BECKWITH CROSSING SUBDIVISION AT 6729 AND 6733 BECKWITH ROAD IN MORTON GROVE, 

ILLINOIS 

Introduced: September 13, 2021 

Purpose: To approve the Final Plat of Subdivision for a Subdivision to be known as the 
Beckwith Crossing Subdivision to create five (5) new lots of record for the property 
commonly known as 6729 and 6733 Beckwith Road.  

Background: The property commonly known as 6729 and 6733 Beckwith Road, located on the 
south side of Beckwith Road between Oak Park Avenue and Lehigh Avenue, in 
Morton Grove, Illinois, has a combined land area of 1.71 acres, is located within 
an R-1 Single Family Residence District, and is currently improved with one (1) 
single-family residence and stormwater management facilities. On July 22, 2019, 
the Village Board of Trustees passed Ordinance 19-10, pursuant to the Subdivision 
Application submitted by Zubair Patel (“Developer) under case PC 19-03, which 
approved a Preliminary Plat of Subdivision for the Property to create five (5) new 
lots of record. Pursuant to Section 12-8-3:A.1, the Developer submitted a Final Plat 
of Subdivision, “Final Plat of Beckwith Crossing Subdivision,” prepared by 
Heritage Land Consultants LLC, dated July 30, 2019. Pursuant to Section 12-8-
3:A.2, the Building Commissioner, Plan Commission Chairperson, Village 
Administrator, and Corporation Counsel reviewed the Final Plat of Subdivision 
and unanimously find that the proposed Final Plat of Subdivision is in substantial 
compliance with the approved Preliminary Plat of Subdivision and recommend 
approval of the Final Plat to the Village Board of Trustees 

Programs, Departments 
 or Groups Affected 

Community and Economic Development, Public Works/Engineering 

Fiscal Impact: N/A 

Source of Funds: N/A 

Workload Impact: The subdivision will be implemented by staff in the normal course of business. 

Administrator 
Recommendation: 

Approval as presented 

Second Reading: September 27, 2021 

Special Considerations 
or Requirements: None 



ORDINANCE 21-07 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL PLAT OF SUBDIVISION AND ACCEPTING 
CERTAIN IMPROVEMENTS FOR THE BECKWITH CROSSING SUBDIVISION AT 6729 

AND 6733 BECKWITH ROAD IN MORTON GROVE, ILLINOIS 

WHEREAS, the Village of Morton Grove (“Village”), located in Cook County, Illinois, is a 

home rule unit of government under the provisions of Article 7 of the 1970 Constitution of the State 

of Illinois, and can exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government and 

affairs, including, but not limited to, the power to tax and incur debt; and 

WHEREAS, the property commonly known as 6729 and 6733 Beckwith Road, located on the 

south side of Beckwith Road between Oak Park Avenue and Lehigh Avenue, in Morton Grove, 

Illinois, has a combined land area of 1.71 acres (74,292 square feet), is located within an R-1 Single 

Family Residence District, and is currently improved with one (1) single-family residence and 

stormwater management facilities (the “Property”); and  

WHEREAS, on July 22, 2019, pursuant to the application of Mr. Zubair Patel (“Developer”) 

under case PC 19-03, the Village Board of Trustees passed Ordinance 19-10, which approved a 

Preliminary Plat of Subdivision for the Property to create five (5) new lots of record, in accordance 

with the submitted Preliminary Plat of Subdivision, prepared by Heritage Land Consultants LLC, 

dated June 17, 2019 (“Preliminary Plat of Subdivision”); and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 12-8-3:A.1, the Developer submitted a Final Plat of 

Subdivision, “Final Plat of Beckwith Crossing Subdivision,” prepared by Heritage Land Consultants 

LLC, dated July 30, 2019 (“Final Plat of Subdivision”), a copy of which is attached hereto and made 

a part hereof, and is marked as “Exhibit A”; and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 12-8-3:A.2, the Building Commissioner, Plan Commission 

Chairperson, Village Administrator, and Corporation Counsel reviewed the Final Plat of Subdivision 

and unanimously find that the proposed Final Plat of Subdivision is in substantial compliance with 

the approved Preliminary Plat of Subdivision and recommend approval of the Final Plat to the Village 

Board of Trustees; and 

WHEREAS, the Developer submitted plans, “Beckwith Crossing 4 Lot Subdivision Site 

Improvement Plan 6727-6733 Beckwith, Morton Grove, Cook County, IL” prepared by Bono 

Consulting, Inc. dated June 8, 2020 and revised on July 1, 2020, which the Village Engineer finally 

approved on July 14, 2020 and is marked as “Exhibit B” (“Site Improvement Plans”); and  



WHEREAS, the Developer has installed surface and underground improvements within the 

public rights-of-way dedicated to the Village and on private property owned by the Developer 

including, but not limited to, street pavement patches, curb and gutter, driveway pavement, sidewalk, 

stormwater management system, building sewers, and water service lines; and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 12-8-3:A.3, the Village Engineer provided a signed statement, 

“Certificate of Conformance of Constructed Improvements,” dated August 3, 2021, a copy of which 

is attached hereto and made a part hereof, and is marked as “Exhibit C”,  certifying that the 

improvements described in Developer’s plans and specifications, together with the supporting 

documents and agreements, meet the minimum requirements of the Village, county, state, and other 

authorities having jurisdiction and that improvements comply as herein provided; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 12-8-3:D.1.c, the Developer submitted “As-Built Grading 

& Drainage Plan” and “As-Built Utility Plan,” prepared by Bono Consulting, Inc., dated November 

12, 2020, attached hereto as “Exhibit D” (“As-Built Plans”); and  

WHEREAS, the Village staff has recommended that improvements within the public rights-

of-way dedicated to the Village, limited to street pavement patches, curb and gutter, and sidewalk, 

have been installed according to the Site Improvement Plans and should be accepted by the 

Corporate Authorities; and 

WHEREAS, the Village staff has recommended, and the Developer has agreed that the 

following improvements will NOT be accepted by the Village and shall remain the property of the 

Developer or his successor: 

1. All improvements installed as part of the Site Improvement Plans within the private

property;

2. The stormwater management improvements installed as part of the Site Improvement

Plans within the right-of-way or on private property up to and including the connection

to the Village’s storm sewer within Beckwith Road;

WHEREAS, the Developer has prepared declarations, “Declaration of Covenants, 

Conditions, Easements and Restrictions for the Beckwith Crossing Homeowners Association,” a 

copy of which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, and is marked as “Exhibit E”, that will run 

with and bind any and all portions of the property and shall be binding on the owner, and its 

successors in interest, to all portions of the property explicitly describing the above maintenance 

responsibilities and graphically depicting the limits of the utilities to be privately owned and 

privately maintained; and  



WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 12-8-3:C.7, the Developer furnished a required good and 

sufficient security in the form of an irrevocable surety bond to guarantee the performance of and 

payment for the improvements included in the approved site plan in the amount of $276,000.00; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 12-8-3:D, the Developer and Village entered into a 

maintenance agreement, dated August 26, 2021, a copy of which is attached hereto and made a part 

hereof, and is marked as “Exhibit F”, for the repair or replacement of defective materials and 

workmanship for a period of time extending two (2) years for improvements constructed in the public 

rights-of-way and a guarantee in the amount of ten (10) percent of the value of those improvements, 

which is $2,420.23; and  

WHEREAS, Developer has met all of the conditions required for accepting public 

improvements and releasing the security specified in Section 12-8-3:D; and  

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities have considered this matter at a Public Meeting and 

find, pursuant to the relevant provisions of the Village of Morton Grove Unified Development Code, 

the proposed Final Plat of Subdivision to be in accordance with applicable ordinances of the Village 

of Morton Grove for a Subdivision, subject to the conditions and restrictions as set herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF 

TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS, AS 

FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1:  Incorporation by Reference. The Corporate Authorities do hereby incorporate 

the foregoing WHEREAS clauses into this Ordinance, as though fully set forth herein, thereby making 

the findings as hereinabove set forth: 

SECTION 2:  Approval of Final Plat of Subdivision. The Corporate Authorities do hereby 

approve the Final Plat of Subdivision for a Subdivision to be known as the Beckwith Crossing 

Subdivision to create five (5) new lots of record for the property commonly known as 6729 and 6733 

Beckwith Road, and legally described in Exhibit A.  

SECTION 3:  Conditions. The Final recorded Plat of Subdivision shall be subject to the 

following conditions:  

A. The Final recorded Plat of Subdivision shall be in accordance with the approved “Final Plat

of  Final Plat of Beckwith Crossing Subdivision,” prepared by Heritage Land Consultants

LLC, dated July 30, 2019, attached hereto as Exhibit A.

B. The property and buildings shall be operated consistent with the plans and supporting

documents in the application, and any necessary modifications to accommodate code



compliance requirements as finalized and specifically approved in writing by the Village 

Administrator or his/her designee, including: 

a. “Final Plat of  Final Plat of Beckwith Crossing Subdivision,” prepared by Heritage

Land Consultants LLC, dated July 30, 2019, attached hereto as Exhibit A.

b. “Declaration of Covenants, Conditions, Easements and Restrictions for the Beckwith

Crossing Homeowners Association,” prepared by the Law Office of Howard D.

Weisman, attached hereto as Exhibit E.

c. “Beckwith Crossing 4 Lot Subdivision Site Improvement Plan 6727-6733 Beckwith,

Morton Grove, Cook County, IL” prepared by Bono Consulting, Inc. dated June 8, 2020

and revised on July 1, 2020, which the Village Engineer finally approved on July 14,

2020, attached hereto as Exhibit B.

d. “As-Built Grading & Drainage Plan” and “As-Built Utility Plan,” prepared by Bono

Consulting, Inc., dated November 12, 2020, attached hereto as Exhibit D.

SECTION 4: Filing of Final Plat of Subdivision. The Developer or his successor shall 

maintain filing of the Final Plat of Subdivision with the Recorder of Deeds of Cook County, Illinois, 

in accordance with Section 12-8-3 of the Village Code.  

SECTION 5: Acceptance of Improvements 

A. The Corporate Authorities hereby accept ownership and perpetual maintenance of the

street pavement patches, curb and gutter, and sidewalk constructed or installed in the

public right-of-way as part of the Site Improvement Plans.

B. The Corporate Authorities do NOT accept ownership or maintenance obligations of any

improvements not specifically described in Subsection A of this Section 5 including, but

not limited to:

1. All improvements installed as part of the Site Improvement Plans within the private

property;

2. The stormwater management improvements installed as part of the Site Improvement

Plans within the right-of-way or on private property up to and including the

connection to the Village’s storm sewer within Beckwith Road;

SECTION 6: Performance Guarantee Release. The Village Engineer is authorized to take all 

steps necessary to release all performance guarantees on behalf of the Village when 

appropriate.  

SECTION 7:  Effective Date. The Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after 

its passage, approval and publication in pamphlet form according to law; the Developer 



or his/her successors had recorded Final Plat of Subdivision, in accordance with Section 

12-8-3 of the Village Code, recorded this Ordinance with the Recorder of Deeds of Cook

County, Illinois, and has provided the evidence of such recordings to the Village of Morton

Grove.

PASSED this 27th day of September 2021. 

Trustee Grear 

Trustee Khan 

Trustee Minx 

Trustee Travis 

Trustee Thill 

Trustee Witko 

APPROVED by me this 27th day of September 2021. 

____________________________________ 
Daniel P. DiMaria, Village President 
Village of Morton Grove 
Cook County, Illinois 

APPROVED and FILED in my office this 
28th day of September 2021. 

Eileen Scanlon Harford, Village Clerk 
Village of Morton Grove 
Cook County, Illinois 



LIST OF EXHIBITS 

EXHIBIT A “Final Plat of Beckwith Crossing Subdivision,” prepared by Heritage Land 
Consultants LLC, dated July 30, 2019 

EXHIBIT B “Beckwith Crossing 4 Lot Subdivision Site Improvement Plan 6727-6733 
Beckwith, Morton Grove, Cook County, IL” prepared by Bono Consulting, Inc. 
dated June 8, 2020 and revised on July 1, 2020, which the Village Engineer 
finally approved on July 14, 2020 

EXHIBIT C Certificate of Conformance of Constructed Improvements, dated August 3, 2021 

EXHIBIT D “As-Built Grading & Drainage Plan” and “As-Built Utility Plan,” prepared by 
Bono Consulting, Inc., dated November 12, 2020 

EXHIBIT E “Declaration of Covenants, Conditions, Easements and Restrictions for the 
Beckwith Crossing Homeowners Association,” prepared by the Law Office of 
Howard D. Weisman 

EXHIBIT F Maintenance Agreement and Guarantee, dated August 26, 2021 



EXHIBIT A 

“Final Plat of Beckwith Crossing Subdivision,” 
Prepared by Heritage Land Consultants LLC 

Dated July 30, 2019 









EXHIBIT B 

“Beckwith Crossing 4 Lot Subdivision Site Improvement Plan 6727-6733 Beckwith, Morton 
Grove, Cook County, IL”  

Prepared by Bono Consulting, Inc.  
Dated June 8, 2020, revised on July 1, 2020, approved by the Village Engineer on July 14, 2020 























   
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT C 
 

Certificate of Conformance of Constructed Improvements 
Dated August 3, 2021 

 
  





   
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT D 
 

“As-Built Grading & Drainage Plan” and “As-Built Utility Plan” 
Prepared by Bono Consulting, Inc. 

Dated November 12, 2020 
 

  



6

4

1

6
4
2

6

4

3

BERM 643.50

642.30

642.50

642.70

642.90

643.10

642.50

RIM 641.93

642.00

643.00

SUMMIT

642.13

642.45

SUMMIT

642.46

642.65

SUMMIT

642.49

642.40

642.30

642.20

642.24

642.00

641.80

RIM 641.77

641.70

BERM 643.50

BERM 643.50

643.30

642.16

642.70

642.60

641.87

642.30
641.90

642.20

641.81

642.20

641.72

642.20

641.69

642.00

642.07

642.50

643.00

643.06

643.20

RIM 642.75

642.80

643.34

643.20

643.46

643.60

643.30

643.60

643.11

643.20

RIM 642.64

642.60

643.59

644.00

SUMMIT

643.60

643.20

644.00

SUMMIT

643.60

643.20

641.84

642.10

641.89

642.30

642.23

642.20

642.58

642.60

642.76

643.00

642.43

642.60

642.78

643.00

643.06

643.40

643.39

643.80

SUMMIT

642.95

643.40

RIM 641.93

641.95

643.60

SUMMIT

643.40

643.20

643.00

642.80

INVERT 638.37

638.40

INVERT 638.76 638.75

BERM 643.75

BERM 643.00

BERM 643.60

643.50

BERM 643.26

643.50

BERM 643.54

643.50

BERM 643.50

BERM 643.50

BERM 643.56

643.00

BERM 643.10

643.50

642

642
642

643

643

6

4

3

6

4

3

6
4
3

643.19

642.95

6
4
3

644.00

644.00

644.00 644.00

644.00

643.80

643.80

644.00

644.00

644.00

644.00

644.00

644.00

RIM 642.23

642.20

642.36

642.45

643.70

643.70

643.43

643.60

SUMMIT

RIM 643.00

643.05

643.85

643.70

643.50

643.80

644.20

643.90

643.80

643.60

643.40

643.25

N

E

W

 
5

' 
C

O

N

C

R

E

T

E

S

I
D

E

W

A

L

K

N

E

W

 
5

' 
C

O

N

C

R

E

T

E

S

I
D

E

W

A

L

K

N

E

W

 
C

U

R

B

 
A

N

D

 
G

U

T

T

E

R

C:643.15 642.90

G:642.75 642.59

643.19

643.15

C:643.12 643.10

G:642.80 642.68

643.00

C:642.95

G:642.75

643.03

643.00

C:642.93 642.95

G:642.45 642.65

642.96

642.95

C:642.87 642.90

G:642.34 642.40

642.87

642.90

C:642.78 642.85

G:642.30 642.35

642.79

642.80

C:642.71 642.75

G:642.22 642.25

642.66

642.75

C:642.57 642.70

G:642.11 642.15

642.64

642.60

C:642.56 642.55

G:642.14 642.05

642.59

642.45

C:642.48 642.40

G:642.07 641.90

642.54

642.40

C:642.44 642.35

G:642.03 641.85

642.47

642.35

C:642.32 642.30

G:641.84 641.80

642.25

642.00

C:642.18 641.95

G:641.75 641.70

642.15

642.00

MATCH EX.

C:641.95

G:641.80

MATCH EX.

T/W 643.34 643.50

B/W 638.29 639.00

T/W 642.57 642.60

B/W 638.39 638.40

5' OVERFLOW SECTION

IN WALL 642.57 642.60

642.83

643.50

RIM 642.88

642.90

643.18

643.20

6

4

3

RIM 642.14

642.20

T/W 643.42 643.95

B/W 642.42 642.20

642

643

643

6
4

2

642

6
4

2

D

E

P

.
 
C

 
&

 
G

N

E

W

 
C

U

R

B

 
A

N

D

 
G

U

T

T

E

R

CONCRETE

DRIVEWAY

642.27

642.50

643

T/W 643.53 643.50

B/W 638.21 638.75

643.07

643.50

T/W 643.57 643.50

B/W 638.14 638.60

643.02

643.50

T/W 643.54 643.50

B/W 638.40 638.50

642.62

643.50

T/W 639.86 643.50

B/W 638.36 639.00

T/W 643.70 643.50

B/W 638.78 638.80

T/W 643.69 643.50

B/W 638.35 638.65

T/W 643.58 643.50

B/W 638.34 638.50

6
4
3

T/W 643.53 643.50

B/W 638.34 638.40

6
4

3

643

642.02

642.30

SUMMIT

RIM 642.18

642.25

642.47

643.00

6

4

3

6

4

3

.

5

0

643.50 643.50

642.50

643

GRASS BOTTOM

STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT

STORAGE AREA

T/W 642.30 643.95

B/W 642.15 642.35

T/W 643.45 643.95

B/W 642.47 642.45

T/W 643.48 643.95

B/W 642.43 642.15

T/W 643.49 643.95

B/W 642.38 642.15

T/W 643.37 643.95

B/W 642.52 642.30

T/W 643.45

643.50

643.18

643.40

SUMMIT

CONCRETE

DRIVEWAY

LOT 4
NEW SINGLE FAMILY

RESIDENCE
T/F 644.50
G/S 644.00
F/F 645.67

642

O
V

E
R

F
L

O
W

O
V

E
R

F
L

O
W

O
V

E
R

F
L

O
W

100 YEAR OVERLAND OVERFLOW

PATH. NO WINDOW WELLS TO BE

INSTALLED IN EMERGENCY

OVERFLOW SWALE.

B
B

'

C
C

'

EXISTING FLOOR

ELEV. 644.43

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS
DS

DS

DS

645.00

644.80

643.55

DS

645.00

643.80

T
/
S

 
@

D
O

O
R

6
4

4
.
0

0

642.26

642.45

SUMMIT

RIM 642.10

642.15

642.18

642.35

SUMMIT

643.63

644.50

643.77

644.50

643.83

644.50

643.28

644.35

643.43

644.35

643.44

644.35

642.81

644.35

642.81

644.35

643.34

644.50

643.40

644.50

643.23

644.50

642.41

642.95

642.35

642.00

642.42

642.95

642.30

642.60

642.95

642.36

642.00

642.65

642.95

642.66

642.45

642.36

642.95

RIM 641.77

641.90

642.45

642.95

642.07

642.45

6

4

3

644

6

4

4

644

644

6

4

4

644

643

6

4

2

643.49

644.50

643.11

644.50

643.71

644.50

643.71

644.50

644.00

645.00

641.90 RIM

642.00

A A'

642.40

643.00

642.68

643.00

642.62

643.00

642.42

643.00

642.41

643.00

644.03

644.50

643.61

645.00

643.82

645.00

643.12

645.00

643.62

645.00

644.07

645.00

643.00

645.00

643.10

645.00

643.03

645.00

6

4

3

6

4

3

6

4

3

6

4

3

6

4

4

6

4

4

6

4

2

642

643

643

6
4
3

643

6

4

2

642

6
4
2

643

6

4

2

6

4

3

6
4
3

6
4
2

6

4

1

6
4
1

6
4
2

6
4
0

6
3
9

AS-BUILT

S

E E E

6
3
0

STORM SEWER

8" PVC SDR 26

74 LF @ 1.01%

75 LF @ 1.01%

THE PROJECT AS BUILT REASONABLY CONFORMS TO THE

DRAWINGS THAT WERE SUBMITTED AS PART OF THE

PERMITTING PROCESS. ITEMS THAT DIFFER FROM THE

APPROVED PLAN MEET THE ORIGINAL DESIGN INTENT.

___________________________          __________

        ENGINEER   DATE

11-25-2020

DATE OF SURVEY NOV. 12, 2020

1"=20'-0

A
S

-B
U

IL
T

 G
R

A
D

IN
G

 &
 D

R
A

IN
A

G
E

 P
LA

N

O
V

E
R

A
LL

 S
IT

E

N

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 S
T

A
F

F
IS

S
U

E
R

E
V

IS
IO

N
S

D
A

T
E

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 M
A

N
A

G
E

R
:

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
:

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
:

T
E

C
H

N
IC

IA
N

:

B
. B

O
N

O
 P

.E
.

1
A

S
 B

U
IL

T
 S

U
R

V
E

Y
11

-1
2-

20
20

COPYRIGHT:
THIS DRAWING SHALL NOT BE USED,
REPRODUCED, MODIFIED OR SOLD EITHER
WHOLLY OR IN PART, EXCEPT WHEN
AUTHORIZED IN WRITING BY THE ENGINEER.

18445PROJECT NUMBER:

START DATE: NOV. 09, 2018

SCALE:

SHEET NUMBER

B
E

C
K

W
IT

H
 C

R
O

S
S

IN
G

4 
LO

T
 S

U
B

D
IV

IS
IO

N
67

27
-6

73
3 

B
E

C
H

W
IT

H
, M

O
R

T
O

N
 G

R
O

V
E

, I
LL

IN
O

IS

A
. V

E
E

R
 P

.E
.

B
O

N
O

 C
O

N
S

U
LT

IN
G

, I
N

C
.

C
IV

IL
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

S

10
18

 B
U

S
S

E
 H

IG
H

W
A

Y
P

A
R

K
 R

ID
G

E
, I

L 
 6

00
68

P
H

  :
  (

84
7)

 8
23

-3
30

0
F

A
X

: 
(8

47
) 

82
3-

33
03

bb
on

o@
bo

no
co

ns
ul

tin
g.

co
m

C
B

I

AB-1

B

A

I

ON

L

L

I

S

E

E

V

H

I

T
I

I

R

J

EXP. 11-30-21

SHEET 1 OF 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
ILLINOIS PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEY AND PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING DESIGN FIRM CORPORATION LICENSE NO. 184.004955 EXPIRES : 04/30/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISK: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISK: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL  4

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
48.10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.04'

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.76'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.05'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.73'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.32'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.03'

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.84'

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.09'

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 79°50'44" E  316.18'=MEAS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 00°38'00" W   265.16'=MEAS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 89°32'22" W  229.63'=MEAS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 00°38'00" W  96.34'=MEAS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 89°32'22" W  81.01'=MEAS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 00°38'00" E   308.25'=MEAS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 STORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRICK HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRAME

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.28'

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.18'

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.27'

AutoCAD SHX Text
BECKWITH

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.88'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET 16p NAIL OVER FOUND IRON PIPE 11.76' S. & 0.36' E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTER OF CHAIN LINK FENCE 0.7' E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 8

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 9

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 10

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 11

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 12

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTER OF CHAIN LINK FENCE 0.9' E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTER OF CHAIN LINK FENCE 0.09' N. & 1.1' E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTER OF WOOD FENCE 0.2' S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHAIN LINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
229.64'=REC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 5/8" IRON ROD 0.58' E. (CENTER OF CHAIN LINK FENCE 0.6' E.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 5/8" IRON PIPE 0.96' N. & 0.46' W. (CHAIN LINK FENCE CORNER IS 0.7' S. & 0.3' W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHAIN LINK FENCE POST IS 0.7' S. & 5.3' W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 1" IRON STAKE 1.14' W. OF LINE (CHAIN LINK FENCE CORNER IS 1.3' W. OF LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 3/4" IRON PIPE 0.7' N. & 0.14' W. (CHAIN LINK FENCE CORNER IS 0.4' W. OF LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
81.00'=DEED

AutoCAD SHX Text
96.34'=REC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND IRON STAKE 0.09' S. & 0.40' E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD FENCE POST IS 0.4' W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 3/4" IRON PIPE 0.24' N. & 0.07' W. FOUND 5/8" IRON ROD 0.39' N. & 0.73' E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHAIN LINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.56

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.98

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.78

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.35

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.11

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.63

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.04

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.65

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.73

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.35

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.05

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.83

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.74

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.69

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.60

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.49

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.39

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.27

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.27

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.91

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.84

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.62

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.41

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.40

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.74

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.33

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.28

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.27

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.27

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.26

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.35

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.54

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.48

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.45

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.79

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.11

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.11

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.84

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.38

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.14

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.04

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.57

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.58

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.10

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.56

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.49

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.63

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.77

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.13

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.55

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.77

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.86

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.95

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.91

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.55

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.56

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.43

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.58

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.56

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.41

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.29

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.20

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.15

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.26

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.37

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.42

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.58

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.51

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.48

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.73

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.92

AutoCAD SHX Text
644.11

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.69

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.73

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.83

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.65

AutoCAD SHX Text
644.07

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.95

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.45

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.55

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.98

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.93

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.80

AutoCAD SHX Text
644.52

AutoCAD SHX Text
644.76

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.91

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.86

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.97

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.95

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.15

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.93

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.94

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.23

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.08

AutoCAD SHX Text
644.53

AutoCAD SHX Text
644.39

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.34

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.77

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.47

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.59

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.63

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.37

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.77

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.78

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.67

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.80

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.72

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.68

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.73

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.28

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.85

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.55

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.54

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.61

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.34

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.34

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.61

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.80

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.34

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.22

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.09

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.95

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.89

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.96

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.73

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.73

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.18

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.18

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.54

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.54

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.60

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.69

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.52

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.98

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.04

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.74

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.84

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.43

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.43

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.33

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.27

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.33

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.33

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.85

AutoCAD SHX Text
639.80

AutoCAD SHX Text
638.76

AutoCAD SHX Text
638.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
639.94

AutoCAD SHX Text
639.98

AutoCAD SHX Text
638.72

AutoCAD SHX Text
638.72

AutoCAD SHX Text
639.04

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.04

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
639.42

AutoCAD SHX Text
639.41

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.28

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.61

AutoCAD SHX Text
639.86

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.16

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.66

AutoCAD SHX Text
639.98

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.73

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.51

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
639.47

AutoCAD SHX Text
639.12

AutoCAD SHX Text
639.12

AutoCAD SHX Text
639.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
639.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.91

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.97

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.96

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.63

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.97

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.83

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.69

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.68

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.41

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.89

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.22

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.84

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.19

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.17

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.36

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.89

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.97

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.22

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.47

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.73

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.96

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.12

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.23

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.97

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.05

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.04

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.92

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.12

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.38

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.65

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.62

AutoCAD SHX Text
644.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.58

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.72

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.57

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.55

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
645.08

AutoCAD SHX Text
645.16

AutoCAD SHX Text
645.43

AutoCAD SHX Text
645.79

AutoCAD SHX Text
644.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
644.05

AutoCAD SHX Text
644.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
644.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.94

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.78

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.68

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.58

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.58

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.38

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.32

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.43

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.59

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.55

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.57

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.58

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.94

AutoCAD SHX Text
644.11

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.45

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.24

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.57

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.19

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.28

AutoCAD SHX Text
645.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.69

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.74

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.95

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.15

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.92

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.74

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.37

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.53

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.59

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.18

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.72

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.81

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.95

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.95

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.80

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.71

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.35

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.40

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.80

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.80

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.67

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.99

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.14

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.08

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.15

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.15

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.05

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.16

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.15

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.11

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.19

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.22

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.24

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.79

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.63

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.19

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.27

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.37

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.35

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.28

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.19

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.28

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.64

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.15

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.55

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.62

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.92

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.20

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.32

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.63

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.85

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.73

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.34

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.24

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.55

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.97

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.98

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.76

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.63

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.14

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.46

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.65

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.91

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.29

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.76

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.52

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.91

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.99

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.43

AutoCAD SHX Text
644.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.86

AutoCAD SHX Text
644.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.74

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.67

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.16

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.16

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.63

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.64

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 5/8" IRON ROD 10.87' S. &  5.11' E. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
645

AutoCAD SHX Text
645

AutoCAD SHX Text
644

AutoCAD SHX Text
644

AutoCAD SHX Text
643

AutoCAD SHX Text
643

AutoCAD SHX Text
643

AutoCAD SHX Text
643

AutoCAD SHX Text
643

AutoCAD SHX Text
643

AutoCAD SHX Text
643

AutoCAD SHX Text
643

AutoCAD SHX Text
643

AutoCAD SHX Text
643

AutoCAD SHX Text
643

AutoCAD SHX Text
643

AutoCAD SHX Text
643

AutoCAD SHX Text
643

AutoCAD SHX Text
643

AutoCAD SHX Text
642

AutoCAD SHX Text
642

AutoCAD SHX Text
642

AutoCAD SHX Text
642

AutoCAD SHX Text
642

AutoCAD SHX Text
642

AutoCAD SHX Text
642

AutoCAD SHX Text
642

AutoCAD SHX Text
642

AutoCAD SHX Text
642

AutoCAD SHX Text
642

AutoCAD SHX Text
642

AutoCAD SHX Text
642

AutoCAD SHX Text
641

AutoCAD SHX Text
641

AutoCAD SHX Text
641

AutoCAD SHX Text
641

AutoCAD SHX Text
641

AutoCAD SHX Text
641

AutoCAD SHX Text
640

AutoCAD SHX Text
640

AutoCAD SHX Text
640

AutoCAD SHX Text
640

AutoCAD SHX Text
639

AutoCAD SHX Text
639

AutoCAD SHX Text
639

AutoCAD SHX Text
BBOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
BBOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
VALVE BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
641

AutoCAD SHX Text
641

AutoCAD SHX Text
MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=643.36

AutoCAD SHX Text
22"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
16"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
13"

AutoCAD SHX Text
17"

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
9"

AutoCAD SHX Text
13"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8,4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
MULTI

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"

AutoCAD SHX Text
30"

AutoCAD SHX Text
13"

AutoCAD SHX Text
20"

AutoCAD SHX Text
15"

AutoCAD SHX Text
22"

AutoCAD SHX Text
11"

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCHMARK: FOUND CROSS IN CONCRETE SIDEWALK ELEV=642.60 (NAVD 88)

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=642.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=642.04 NE INV=640.24 (6")

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=642.75 N INV=638.22 (12") SW INV=640.22 (6")

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=642.23 N INV=638.63 (12")

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=641.69 S-E INV=639.19 (6")

AutoCAD SHX Text
INLET RIM=641.57 N INV=638.12 (12") W INV=638.12 (6")

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN MH

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=643.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
(ABANDONED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM MH

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=642.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
E-W INV=628.70 (24")

AutoCAD SHX Text
S INV=635.90 (12")

AutoCAD SHX Text
INLET RIM=641.92 N INV=638.03 (12") SW INV=638.03 (6")

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN. MH RIM=642.00 (UNABLE TO OPEN)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN. MH RIM=642.34 INV E-W 634.67

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM MH RIM=642.87 N-S-E INV=638.47 (12") E INV=638.47 (12")

AutoCAD SHX Text
INLET RIM=642.31 S INV=638.47 (12")

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=641.78 S INV=638.27 (12")

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO INCLUDED IN DEVELOPMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
26"

AutoCAD SHX Text
7,5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
11,8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
multi

AutoCAD SHX Text
9"

AutoCAD SHX Text
multi

AutoCAD SHX Text
01

AutoCAD SHX Text
05

AutoCAD SHX Text
06

AutoCAD SHX Text
03

AutoCAD SHX Text
04

AutoCAD SHX Text
09

AutoCAD SHX Text
31

AutoCAD SHX Text
29

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
35

AutoCAD SHX Text
36

AutoCAD SHX Text
38

AutoCAD SHX Text
39

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
42

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
47

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" STORM SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SANITARY SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SANITARY SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" STORM SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SANITARY SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" STORM SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" STORM SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" STORM SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" STORM SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" STORM SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" STORM SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" WATER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" WATER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" WATER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" WATER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" STORM SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM MH RIM=642.32 N-S INV=638.12 (12") E-W INV=637.82 (12")

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE RETAINING WALL TO ALLOW FOR OVERFLOW ROUTE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE BLOCK RETAINING WALL AROUND DETENTION POND W/ 48" HIGH SAFETY RAILINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE LOCATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE LOCATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
ONGOING CONSTRUCTION IN BUBBLED AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
T/W 000.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.04

AutoCAD SHX Text
C=643.00 G=642.55

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.97

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.66

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.56

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.91

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.95

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.28

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.29

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.68

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.67

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.72

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.79

AutoCAD SHX Text
644.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.68

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.18

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.49

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.36

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.65

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.99

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.29

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.84

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.33

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.54

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.20

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.54

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.72

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.09

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.27

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.51

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.78

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.20

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.69

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.93

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.07

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.76

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.67

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.07

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.57

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.39

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.81

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.20

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.20

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.13

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.87

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.97

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.56

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.65

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.54

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.29

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.64

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.11

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.39

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.66

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.13

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.48

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.52

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.05

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.39

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.26

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.91

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.86

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.49

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.27

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.63

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.24

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.08

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.84

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.65

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.43

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.72

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.84

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.99

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.51

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.29

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.56

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.51

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.33

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.64

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.17

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.47

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.97

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.43

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.09

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.34

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.57

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.15

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.49

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.55

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.24

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.62

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.39

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.38

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.60

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.68

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.46

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.81

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.44

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.33

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.68

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.73

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.27

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.61

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.54

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.68

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.48

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.79

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.72

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.55

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.95

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.55

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.18

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.61

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.94

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.49

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.10

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.18

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.65

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.71

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.97

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.78

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.48

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.91

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.40

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.33

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.63

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.51

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.40

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.26

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.92

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.20

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.10

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.93

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.09

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.41

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.04

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.17

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.79

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.94

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.85

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.96

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.11

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.73

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.98

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.78

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.85

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.04

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.16

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.09

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.93

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.19

AutoCAD SHX Text
639.10

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
639.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.32

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.16

AutoCAD SHX Text
638.24

AutoCAD SHX Text
638.26

AutoCAD SHX Text
638.17

AutoCAD SHX Text
638.33

AutoCAD SHX Text
638.32

AutoCAD SHX Text
638.22

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.93

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.49

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.39

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.49

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.42

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.43

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.72

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.15

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.55

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.86

AutoCAD SHX Text
644.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.28

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.55

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.74

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.53

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.42

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.58

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.78

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.19

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.80

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.29

AutoCAD SHX Text
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
DSIG

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND EXISTING CONTOUR PROPOSED CONTOUR AS-BUILT CONTOUR EXISTING ELEVATION PROPOSED ELEVATION AS-BUILT ELEVATION DASHED GRAY TEXT=PROPOSED BOLD TEXT=AS BUILT INFORMATION EXISTING SANITARY COMBINATION SEWER AS-BUILT SANITARY SEWER AS-BUILT COMBINATION SEWER EXISTING STORM SEWER AS-BUILT STORM SEWER EXISTING WATERMAIN AS-BUILT WATERMAIN EXISTING GAS LINE EXISTING UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC EXISTING UNDERGROUND TELEPHONE EXISTING UNDERGROUND CABLE EXISTING TREE TREE REMOVED SUMP PUMP  DOWNSPOUT (IN-GROUND) SWALE  OUTLET / POP-UP EMITTER CATCH BASIN STORM SEWER MANHOLE SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE CLEANOUT B BOX WOOD UTILITY POLE LIGHT POLE FLARED END SECTION (F.E.S.) INLET / DRAIN WATER VALVE VAULT / WATER METER SIGN MANHOLE (UNCLASSIFIED) FIRE HYDRANT TREE TAG NO. STOP LIGHT GAS VALVE TOP OF GARAGE SLAB TOP OF FOUNDATION TOP OF WALL TOP OF WINDOW WELL

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
660.07

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%C8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%C8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
102.61

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.O.

AutoCAD SHX Text
630

AutoCAD SHX Text
T/W=xxxx

AutoCAD SHX Text
T/F=xxxx

AutoCAD SHX Text
T/S=xxxx

AutoCAD SHX Text
T/W=xxxx

AutoCAD SHX Text
630

AutoCAD SHX Text
660.07

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATIONS OF EXISTING UTILITY SERVICES ARE BASED ON VISUAL OBSERVATIONS. CONTRACTOR MUST CONFIRM LOCATION AND CONDITION OF ALL UTILITY SERVICES TO REMAIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES WHERE NOT SUBSTANTIATED BY PHYSICAL EVIDENCE ARE TAKEN FROM RECORDS NORMALLY CONSIDERED RELIABLE. NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR THEIR ACCURACY IS  ASSUMED BY THE SURVEYOR. FOR LOCATION OF BURIED CABLE CALL J.U.L.I.E. @ 1-800-892-0123 BEFORE DIGGING

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROFESSIONAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
REGISTERED

AutoCAD SHX Text
062-067076

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEER



OVERFLOW WIER 642.57 642.60

TOP OF WALL 643.53 643.50

24" INV. 634.34 638.40

BOTTOM OF WALL 638.34 638.50

VOLUME CONTROL

INFILTRATION STONE

BOTTOM OF STONE 636.90

TOP OF STONE 637.90

6" OF TOP SOIL AND

SOD

12" OF CLEAN WASHED CA-7

VOLUME CONTROL FACILITY DETAIL

NTS

STONE TO BE WRAPPED IN

GEOTEXTILE FABRIC ON

TOP AND SIDES.

SHGWT LOWER THAN 632

4
.
9

'

O
U

T
L
E

T
 P

IP
E

STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT

EASEMENT

(DEDICATED TO HOA)

1

6

.
3

4

'

16.00'

N

E

W

 
5

' 
C

O

N

C

R

E

T

E

S

I
D

E

W

A

L

K

N

E

W

 
5

' 
C

O

N

C

R

E

T

E

S

I
D

E

W

A

L

K

N

E

W

 
C

U

R

B

 
A

N

D

 
G

U

T

T

E

R

D

E

P

.
 
C

 
&

 
G

N

E

W

 
C

U

R

B

 
A

N

D

 
G

U

T

T

E

R

CONCRETE

DRIVEWAY

CONCRETE

DRIVEWAY

LOT 4
NEW SINGLE FAMILY

RESIDENCE
T/F 644.50
G/S 644.00
F/F 645.67

SE

2
5
.
0
0
'

131.00'

1
1
5
.
5
0
'

46.32'

5
.
0
0
'

1"=20'-0

A
S

-B
U

IL
T

 U
T

IL
IT

Y
 P

LA
N

O
V

E
R

A
LL

 S
IT

E

N

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 S
T

A
F

F
IS

S
U

E
R

E
V

IS
IO

N
S

D
A

T
E

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 M
A

N
A

G
E

R
:

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
:

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
:

T
E

C
H

N
IC

IA
N

:

B
. B

O
N

O
 P

.E
.

1
A

S
 B

U
IL

T
 S

U
R

V
E

Y
11

-1
2-

20
20

COPYRIGHT:
THIS DRAWING SHALL NOT BE USED,
REPRODUCED, MODIFIED OR SOLD EITHER
WHOLLY OR IN PART, EXCEPT WHEN
AUTHORIZED IN WRITING BY THE ENGINEER.

18445PROJECT NUMBER:

START DATE: NOV. 09, 2018

SCALE:

SHEET NUMBER

B
E

C
K

W
IT

H
 C

R
O

S
S

IN
G

4 
LO

T
 S

U
B

D
IV

IS
IO

N
67

27
-6

73
3 

B
E

C
H

W
IT

H
, M

O
R

T
O

N
 G

R
O

V
E

, I
LL

IN
O

IS

A
. V

E
E

R
 P

.E
.

B
O

N
O

 C
O

N
S

U
LT

IN
G

, I
N

C
.

C
IV

IL
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

S

10
18

 B
U

S
S

E
 H

IG
H

W
A

Y
P

A
R

K
 R

ID
G

E
, I

L 
 6

00
68

P
H

  :
  (

84
7)

 8
23

-3
30

0
F

A
X

: 
(8

47
) 

82
3-

33
03

bb
on

o@
bo

no
co

ns
ul

tin
g.

co
m

C
B

I

AB-2

STORMWATER DETENTION VOLUME PROVIDED

PER LOCAL REQUIREMENTS WITH AN

ASSUMED IMPERVIOUS AREA OF 60% LOT

COVERAGE.

REQUIRED DETENTION VOLUME 18,295 CUFT

STORMWATER VOLUME CONTROL PROVIDED

PER MWRD REQUIREMENTS WITH AN

ASSUMED IMPERVIOUS AREA OF 60% LOT

COVERAGE.

REQUIRED VOLUME CONTROL 3,724 CUFT

SANITARY AND STORM
CONNECTIONS MUST BE
DIRECTIONALLY BORED

SHEET 2 OF 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISK: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
181029

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLAG

AutoCAD SHX Text
POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE        WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
48.10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.04'

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.76'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.05'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.73'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.32'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.03'

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.84'

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.09'

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 79°50'44" E  316.18'=MEAS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 00°38'00" W   265.16'=MEAS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 89°32'22" W  229.63'=MEAS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 00°38'00" W  96.34'=MEAS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 00°38'00" E   308.25'=MEAS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 STORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRICK HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRAME

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.28'

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.18'

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.27'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BECKWITH

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.88'

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHAIN LINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
229.64'=REC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH LINE OF THE S. 534.66 FT. OF THE N.E. 1/4 OF SEC. 18-41-13

AutoCAD SHX Text
96.34'=REC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
58.93'=DEED

AutoCAD SHX Text
60.00'=DEED

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTHERLY LINE OF BECKWITH ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS MONUMENTED AND OCCUPIED

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHAIN LINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST LINE OF THE W. 241.93 FT. OF THE N.E. 1/4 OF SEC. 18-41-13

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST LINE OF THE W. 264.0 FT. OF THE N.E. 1/4 OF SEC. 18-41-13

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH LINE OF THE S. 481 FT. OF THE N.E. 1/4 OF SEC. 18-41-13

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST LINE OF THE W. 493.59 FT. OF THE N.E. 1/4 OF SEC. 18-41-13

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH LINE OF THE S. 614.34 FT. OF THE N.E. 1/4 OF SEC. 18-41-13

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.56

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.98

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.78

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.35

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.11

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.63

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.04

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.65

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.73

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.35

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.05

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.83

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.74

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.69

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.60

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.49

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.39

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.27

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.27

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.91

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.84

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.62

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.41

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.40

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.74

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.33

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.28

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.27

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.27

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.26

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.35

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.54

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.48

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.45

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.79

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.11

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.11

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.84

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.38

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.14

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.04

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.57

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.58

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.10

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.56

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.49

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.63

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.77

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.13

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.55

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.77

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.86

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.95

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.91

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.55

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.56

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.43

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.58

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.56

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.41

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.29

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.20

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.15

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.26

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.37

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.42

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.58

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.51

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.48

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.73

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.92

AutoCAD SHX Text
644.11

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.69

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.73

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.83

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.65

AutoCAD SHX Text
644.07

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.95

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.45

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.55

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.98

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.93

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.80

AutoCAD SHX Text
644.52

AutoCAD SHX Text
644.76

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.91

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.86

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.97

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.95

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.15

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.93

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.94

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.23

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.08

AutoCAD SHX Text
644.53

AutoCAD SHX Text
644.39

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.34

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.77

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.47

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.59

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.63

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.37

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.77

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.78

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.67

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.80

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.72

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.68

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.73

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.28

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.85

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.55

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.54

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.61

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.34

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.34

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.61

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.80

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.34

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.22

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.09

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.95

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.89

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.96

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.73

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.73

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.18

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.18

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.54

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.54

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.60

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.69

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.52

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.98

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.04

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.74

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.84

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.43

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.43

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.33

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.27

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.33

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.33

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.85

AutoCAD SHX Text
639.80

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
639.94

AutoCAD SHX Text
639.98

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.04

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
639.42

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.28

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.61

AutoCAD SHX Text
639.86

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.16

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.66

AutoCAD SHX Text
639.98

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.73

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.51

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
639.47

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.91

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.97

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.96

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.63

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.97

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.83

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.69

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.68

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.41

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.89

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.22

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.84

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.19

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.17

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.36

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.89

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.97

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.22

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.47

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.73

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.96

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.12

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.23

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.97

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.05

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.04

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.92

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.12

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.38

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.65

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.62

AutoCAD SHX Text
644.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
644.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.58

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.72

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.57

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.55

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
645.08

AutoCAD SHX Text
645.16

AutoCAD SHX Text
645.43

AutoCAD SHX Text
645.79

AutoCAD SHX Text
644.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
644.05

AutoCAD SHX Text
644.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
644.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.94

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.78

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.68

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.58

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.58

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.38

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.32

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.43

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.59

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.55

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.57

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.58

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.94

AutoCAD SHX Text
644.11

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.45

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.24

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.57

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.19

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.28

AutoCAD SHX Text
645.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.69

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.74

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.95

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.15

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.92

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.74

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.37

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.53

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.59

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.18

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.72

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.81

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.95

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.95

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.80

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.71

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.35

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.40

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.80

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.80

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.67

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.99

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.14

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.08

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.15

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.15

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.05

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.16

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.15

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.11

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.19

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.22

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.24

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.79

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.63

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.19

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.27

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.37

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.35

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.28

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.19

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.28

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.64

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.15

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.55

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.62

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.92

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.20

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.32

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.63

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.85

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.73

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.34

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.24

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.55

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.97

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.98

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.76

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.63

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.14

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.46

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.65

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.91

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.29

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.76

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.52

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.91

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
642.99

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.43

AutoCAD SHX Text
644.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.86

AutoCAD SHX Text
644.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.74

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.67

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.16

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.16

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.63

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.64

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
645

AutoCAD SHX Text
645

AutoCAD SHX Text
644

AutoCAD SHX Text
644

AutoCAD SHX Text
643

AutoCAD SHX Text
643

AutoCAD SHX Text
643

AutoCAD SHX Text
643

AutoCAD SHX Text
643

AutoCAD SHX Text
643

AutoCAD SHX Text
643

AutoCAD SHX Text
643

AutoCAD SHX Text
643

AutoCAD SHX Text
643

AutoCAD SHX Text
643

AutoCAD SHX Text
643

AutoCAD SHX Text
643

AutoCAD SHX Text
643

AutoCAD SHX Text
643

AutoCAD SHX Text
642

AutoCAD SHX Text
642

AutoCAD SHX Text
642

AutoCAD SHX Text
642

AutoCAD SHX Text
642

AutoCAD SHX Text
642

AutoCAD SHX Text
642

AutoCAD SHX Text
642

AutoCAD SHX Text
642

AutoCAD SHX Text
642

AutoCAD SHX Text
642

AutoCAD SHX Text
642

AutoCAD SHX Text
642

AutoCAD SHX Text
641

AutoCAD SHX Text
641

AutoCAD SHX Text
641

AutoCAD SHX Text
641

AutoCAD SHX Text
641

AutoCAD SHX Text
641

AutoCAD SHX Text
640

AutoCAD SHX Text
640

AutoCAD SHX Text
640

AutoCAD SHX Text
640

AutoCAD SHX Text
BBOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
BBOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
VALVE BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
641

AutoCAD SHX Text
641

AutoCAD SHX Text
MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=643.36

AutoCAD SHX Text
T/FDN=

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.28

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOOR=

AutoCAD SHX Text
644.43

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAR. FLR=

AutoCAD SHX Text
643.13

AutoCAD SHX Text
22"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
16"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
13"

AutoCAD SHX Text
17"

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
9"

AutoCAD SHX Text
13"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8,4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
MULTI

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"

AutoCAD SHX Text
30"

AutoCAD SHX Text
13"

AutoCAD SHX Text
20"

AutoCAD SHX Text
15"

AutoCAD SHX Text
22"

AutoCAD SHX Text
11"

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=642.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=642.04 NE INV=640.24 (6")

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=642.75 N INV=638.22 (12") SW INV=640.22 (6")

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=642.23 N INV=638.63 (12")

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=641.69 S-E INV=639.19 (6")

AutoCAD SHX Text
INLET RIM=641.57 N INV=638.12 (12") W INV=638.12 (6")

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN MH

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=643.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
(ABANDONED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM MH

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=642.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
E-W INV=628.70 (24")

AutoCAD SHX Text
S INV=635.90 (12")

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM MH RIM=642.68

AutoCAD SHX Text
INLET RIM=641.92 N INV=638.03 (12") SW INV=638.03 (6")

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN. MH RIM=642.43 N-W INV=636.05 (8")

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM MH RIM=642.61 N-S INV=638.61 (6")

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN. MH RIM=642.00 (UNABLE TO OPEN)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN. MH RIM=642.34 INV E-W 634.67

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM MH RIM=642.87 N-S-E INV=638.47 (12") E INV=638.47 (12")

AutoCAD SHX Text
INLET RIM=642.31 S INV=638.47 (12")

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=641.78 S INV=638.27 (12")

AutoCAD SHX Text
26"

AutoCAD SHX Text
7,5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
11,8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
multi

AutoCAD SHX Text
9"

AutoCAD SHX Text
multi

AutoCAD SHX Text
01

AutoCAD SHX Text
05

AutoCAD SHX Text
06

AutoCAD SHX Text
03

AutoCAD SHX Text
04

AutoCAD SHX Text
09

AutoCAD SHX Text
31

AutoCAD SHX Text
29

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
35

AutoCAD SHX Text
36

AutoCAD SHX Text
38

AutoCAD SHX Text
39

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
42

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
47

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" STORM SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SANITARY SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SANITARY SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" STORM SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SANITARY SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" STORM SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" STORM SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" STORM SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" STORM SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" STORM SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" STORM SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" WATER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" WATER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" WATER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" WATER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM MH RIM=642.00 E-W INV=627.50 (30") S INV=627.50 (12")

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" STORM SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM MH RIM=642.32 N-S INV=638.12 (12") E-W INV=637.82 (12")

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" STORM SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" FES (ST-6) INV. 638.37 638.40 638.40 W/ANIMAL TRAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
48" CATCH BASIN (ST-11) RIM 641.93 641.95(F&G R-2577-B) 641.95(F&G R-2577-B) (F&G R-2577-B) INV. E (24") N/A 638.92 638.92 INV. W (24") N/A 638.92638.92

AutoCAD SHX Text
48" CATCH BASIN (ST-15) RIM 642.23 642.20 (F&G R-2577-B) 642.20 (F&G R-2577-B)  (F&G R-2577-B) INV. NE (24") 638.86 639.26639.26

AutoCAD SHX Text
48" CATCHBASIN (ST-9) RIM 641.77 641.70 (F&G R-2577-B) 641.70 (F&G R-2577-B)  (F&G R-2577-B) INV. E (24") 638.63 638.82 638.82 INV. W (24") 638.66 638.82638.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" FES (ST-7) INV. 638.76 638.80 638.80 W/ANIMAL TRAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESTRICTOR MH 60" RESTRICTOR MANHOLE (ST-2) RIM 642.18 642.25 (F&G R-2577-B) 642.25 (F&G R-2577-B)  (F&G R-2577-B) HWL / OVERFLOW @ RIM INV. N (6") 632.63 632.08 632.08 INV. S (24") 637.42 638.12638.12

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM SEWER (ST-1) 6" DIP  56 LF @ 4.00% LINE TO BE AUGER UNDER THE STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
48" CATCHBASIN (ST-4) RIM 641.90 642.00 (F&G R-2577-B) 642.00 (F&G R-2577-B)  (F&G R-2577-B) INV. N (24") 638.06 638.32 638.32 INV. S (24") 638.09 638.32638.32

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM SEWER (ST-3) 24" HDPE N 12 WT 47 LF @ 0.23% 45 LF @ 0.20%45 LF @ 0.20%

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM SEWER (ST-8) 24" HDPE N 12 ST 12 LF @ 1.08% 11 LF @ 0.20% 11 LF @ 0.20% PERFORATED PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
48" CATCHBASIN (ST-13) RIM 641.94 642.00 (F&G R-2577-B) 642.00 (F&G R-2577-B)  (F&G R-2577-B) INV. E (24") 638.62 639.04 639.04 INV. W (24") 638.73 639.04 639.04 INV. N (12") 639.39 639.41639.41

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM SEWER (ST-10) 24" HDPE N 12 ST 55 LF 53 LF @ 0.20% 53 LF @ 0.20% PERFORATED PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM SEWER (ST-12) 24" HDPE N 12 ST 60 LF @ 0.20%  @ 0.20% PERFORATED PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM SEWER (ST-14) 24" HDPE N 12 WT 111 LF @ 0.12% 113 LF @ 0.20%113 LF @ 0.20%

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM SEWER (ST-13B8) 8" PVC SDR 21 69 LF @ 0.48% 68 LF @ 0.50%68 LF @ 0.50%

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" CATCHBASIN (ST-13B9) RIM 642.57 642.60 (F&G R-2577-B)  642.60 (F&G R-2577-B)  (F&G R-2577-B) INV E (8") 640.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.5" TYPE K COPPER WATER SERVICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY SEWER (SN-1) 6" PVC SDR 26 189 LF @ 1.00% LAST 60' TO BE WATER MAIN QUALITY PIPES & FITTINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" CATCH BASIN (ST-13B7) RIM 642.88 642.90(F&G R-2577-B) 642.90(F&G R-2577-B) (F&G R-2577-B) INV E (8") 640.53 640.56 640.56 INV W (8") 640.57 640.56640.56

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM SEWER (ST-13A) 12" HDPE N 12 WT 86 LF @ 0.42% 0.40%0.40%

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" CATCHBASIN (ST-13B) RIM 642.75 642.80(F&G R-2577-B) 642.80(F&G R-2577-B) (F&G R-2577-B) INV. W (8") 639.77 639.75 639.75 INV. S (12") 639.75 INV. N (12") 639.79 639.75639.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM SEWER (ST-13C) 8" HDPE N 12 WT 59 LF @ 0.70 60 LF @ 0.50% 60 LF @ 0.50%

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" CATCHBASIN (ST-13D) RIM 643.00 643.05(F&G R-2577-B) 643.05(F&G R-2577-B) (F&G R-2577-B) INV E (8") 640.18 640.26 640.26 INV S (6") 640.26

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM SEWER (ST-13B1) 12" HDPE N 12 WT 131 LF @ 0.41% 29 LF @ 0.40%29 LF @ 0.40%

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" CATCHBASIN (ST-13B3) RIM 642.64 642.60 (F&G R-2577-B) 642.60 (F&G R-2577-B)  (F&G R-2577-B) INV E (8") 640.35 640.26 640.26 INV W (8") 640.38 640.26 640.26 INV S (12") 640.33 640.26640.26

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" CATCHBASIN (ST-13B5) RIM 642.14 642.20 (F&G R-2577-B)  642.20 (F&G R-2577-B)  (F&G R-2577-B) INV W (8") 640.42 640.40640.40

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM SEWER (ST-5) 24" HDPE N 12 WT 28 LF @ 0.04% 29 LF @ 0.20%29 LF @ 0.20%

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM SEWER (ST-13B6) 8" PVC SDR 21 61 LF @ 0.25% 59 LF @ 0.50%59 LF @ 0.50%

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM SEWER (ST-13B4) 8" PVC SDR 21 56 LF @ 13% 60 LF @ 0.50%60 LF @ 0.50%

AutoCAD SHX Text
VOLUME CONTROL STONE TRENCH BELOW DETENTION POND. STONE TO BE WRAPPED ON TOP AND SIDES IN GEOTEXTILE FABRIC.  BOTTOM OF STONE ELEV 636.90  TOP OF STONE 637.90 5,508 SF FOOT PRINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
48" CATCHBASIN (ST-11B) RIM 641.77 641.90 (F&G R-2577-B) 641.90 (F&G R-2577-B)  (F&G R-2577-B) INV N (24") 637.93 638.23 638.23 INV S (24") 637.95 638.23638.23

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM SEWER (ST-3) 24" HDPE N 12 WT 40 LF @ 0.08% 42 LF @ 0.20%42 LF @ 0.20%

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE RETAINING WALL TO ALLOW FOR OVERFLOW ROUTE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE BLOCK RETAINING WALL AROUND DETENTION POND W/ 48" HIGH SAFETY RAILINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM SEWER (ST-5A) 24" HDPE N 12 WT 8 LF @ 3.00% 5 LF @ 0.20%5 LF @ 0.20%

AutoCAD SHX Text
48" CATCHBASIN (ST-5A) RIM 641.90 642.00 (F&G R-2577-B)  642.00 (F&G R-2577-B)  (F&G R-2577-B) INV. N (24") 638.10 638.38 638.38 INV. E (24") 638.13 638.38638.38

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM SEWER (ST-13C) 6" PVC SDR 26 22 LF @ 1.00%

AutoCAD SHX Text
VOLUME CONTROL STONE TRENCH BELOW STORM PIPES. STONE TO BE WRAPPED ON TOP AND SIDES IN GEOTEXTILE FABRIC.  BOTTOM OF STONE ELEV 636.90  TOP OF STONE 638.90 3,275 SF FOOT PRINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM SEWER (ST-3) 24" HDPE N 12 WT 13 LF @ 3.62% 11 LF @ 0.20%11 LF @ 0.20%

AutoCAD SHX Text
48" CATCHBASIN (ST-11C) RIM 642.10 642.15 (F&G R-2577-B)  642.15 (F&G R-2577-B)  (F&G R-2577-B) INV N (24") 637.89 638.15  638.15 INV S (24") 637.90 638.15638.15

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE LOCATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE LOCATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
ONGOING CONSTRUCTION IN BUBBLED AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
30



   
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT E 
 

“Declaration of Covenants, Conditions, Easements and Restrictions for the Beckwith Crossing 
Homeowners Association” 

Prepared by the Law Office of Howard D. Weisman 
 

  



 
 
THIS DOCUMENT PREPARED 
BY AND TO BE MAILED 
TO AFTER RECORDING: 
 
 
THE LAW OFFICE OF 
HOWARD D. WEISMAN 
120 SOUTH STATE STREET, SUITE 200 
CHICAGO, ILLINOIS 60603 
HOWARDWEISMAN@AMERITECH.NET 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DECLARATION OF COVENANTS, CONDITIONS,  
EASEMENTS AND RESTRICTIONS FOR THE 

BECKWITH CROSSING HOMEOWNERS 
ASSOCIATION 

 
 
 
 



 1 

DECLARATION OF COVENANTS, CONDITIONS, EASEMENTS  
AND RESTRICTIONS FOR THE BECKWITH CROSSING  

HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION 
 

THIS DECLARATION of Covenants, Conditions, Easements and 
Restrictions for Beckwith Crossing Homeowners Association (hereinafter the 
"Declaration"), on this 5th day of June, 2020, by Zap Properties, LLC, an 
Illinois Limited Liability Company (hereinafter the" Declarant), states as 
follows: 

RECITALS 
 

A. Declarant, Zap Properties, LLC, is the record owner of certain 
real estate in the proposed development area commonly known 
as the BECKWITH CROSSING in the Village of Morton 
Grove, Cook County, Illinois, which is legally described in 
Exhibit A attached hereto (the "Existing Property"). 

 
B. Zap Properties, LLC, is also the Developer herein ("Developer"). 

 
C. The Developer intends to develop and improve the Existing 

Property with dwellings, together with walk ways, landscaped 
areas, privacy fences, and other improvements for the common 
use and enjoyment of the owners, occupants and invitees of said 
dwellings. 

 
D. Developer intends to submit the Existing Property to the 

provisions of this Declaration and to form an Illinois not-for-
profit corporation known as BECKWITH CROSSING, LLC, for 
the purpose of owning, maintaining and administering certain 
portions of the Property (as defined herein Article 5, Section) and 
the facilities and improvements thereof, as hereinafter provided. 
 

E. Declarant/Developer is the record owner of the real estate 
described in Exhibit "A."   

 
F. Declarant/Developer may, but need not, submit to the provisions of 

this Declaration all or portions of Additional Property which may 
be developed and improved with dwellings and improvements for 
common use and enjoyment of the owners and the occupants 
thereof. 
 

G. The Homeowners Association shall be created and established prior 
to the sale of any portion of the property. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, Declarant and his/its successors and/or assigns hereby declares that all of 

the Existing Property and such portions of the Additional Property as may be annexed thereto in the 
manner hereinafter provided shall be held, sold and conveyed subject to the party wall rights, covenants, 
conditions, easements and restrictions, all of which shall run with the land and be binding on all parties 



 2 

having or acquiring any rights, title or interest therein or any part thereof, and shall inure to the benefit 
of each Owner thereof. 
 

ARTICLE I 
INCORPORATION OF RECITALS AND DEFINITIONS 

 
The foregoing recitals and all exhibits attached hereto are by this reference made 

a part of this Declaration as if more fully set forth herein. 
 

The following words when used in this Declaration or in any Supplementary 
Declaration (as defined herein) shall, unless the context shall prohibit, have the 
following meanings: 

 
1.01 Access Area. The unenclosed sidewalks from time to time or at any 

time located or constructed upon the Units and utilized for ingress, 
egress and access to, from and through the Property. 

 
1.02 Additional Property. Does not apply. 

 
1.03 Association. BECKWITH CROSSING HOMEOWNERS 

ASSOCIATION, LLC,  an Illinois not- for-profit corporation, its 
successors and assigns. 

 
1.04 Board. The Board of Directors of the Association. 

 
1.05 Common Area. That portion of the Property designated on the 

Plat, and/or designated on the Plat of Subdivision, to the extent 
maintenance of same has not been assumed by the applicable 
governmental entity or the Owner, together with all 
improvements and facilities at any time located thereon, 
including but not limited to the following if applicable: (i) 
entrance monuments, if any; (ii) privacy wood fences; (iii) 
private road; (iv) landscaping and/or berms, if any; (v) 
underground sprinklers, if any; (vi) offsite detention/retention 
areas; (vii) storm water management facilities and water and 
sewer lines; ( viii) swales, culverts, inlets, drainage pipes, 
appurtenant drainage lines and ditches; (ix) parkway trees; (x) 
sidewalks, paths, and access areas; and (xi) structures and other 
identification features of the Property. 

 
1.06 Common Interest Property.  Real estate with respect to which, 

any person, by virtue of his or her ownership, of a partial interest, 
or unit, in the property, is obligated to pay for maintenance, 
improvement, insurance premiums, or real estate taxes, of other 
real estate, described in a declaration, that is administered by an 
Association. 

 
1.07 Declarant.  Zap Properties, LLC, its successors and/or assigns. 
 
1.08 Developer. Zap Properties, LLC, an Illinois Limited Liability 

Company, its successors and/or assigns. 



 3 

 
1.09 First Mortgagee. A bona fide lender holding a validly recorded 

mortgage or trust deed on a lot or the Common Area which 
mortgage or trust deed was recorded prior in time to all other 
mortgagees or trust deeds against said lot or Common Area. 

 
1.10 Member. Every owner of a Parcel. 

 
1.11 Non-maintenance Area. Any ground area outside the property 

line as defined by the survey of any Parcel as attached to this 
Declaration is designated as a non-maintenance area which is not 
maintained by the Unit Owner but which is maintained by the 
Association. 
 

1.12 Owner. The record owner, whether one or more persons, 
individuals or entities, of fee-simple title to any Unit, including 
contract sellers having such interest merely as security for the 
performance of obligation or obligations. 
 

1.13 Party Walls. Each wall, if any, built as part of the original 
construction of the Units upon the Property and placed on the 
vertical or horizontal dividing line between the Units and/or 
serves two or more Units. 
 

1.14 The Plat of Subdivision (to be recorded) and any further plats of 
Subdivision or any Plats of Survey depicting or describing the 
Property, unrecorded, recorded or to be recorded in the Office of the 
Recorder of Cook County, Illinois affecting the Property or any 
portion. 

 
1.15 Existing Property.  The real estate described in "Exhibit A" attached 

hereto. 
 
1.16 Storm Water Detention Facilities. The Storm Water Detention 

Facilities shall mean the storm water detention facilities located 
anywhere on or off the Property. 

 
1.17 Subdivision.  The Plat of Subdivision previously recorded, and any 

further Plats of Subdivision to be recorded, in the Office of the 
Recorder of Deeds Cook County, Illinois affecting the Property and 
any portion thereof  

 
1.18 Unit. Any plot of land shown upon the Plat which is designated as 

a separate lot thereon and which is improved with a dwelling. 
 
1.19 Applicable Governmental Entity.  The Local Municipality or 

Village, State and the Federal Government where the Plat of 
Subdivision is located.  As to this Declaration:  Morton Grove, 
Illinois, USA. 

 



 4 

 
 ARTICLE 2 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

2.01      Enforcement.  The village, as well as the owners of the units located 
on the property, shall have the right to enforce this Declaration. 
 
2.02 Maintenance to the Land and Its Appurtances.  The Village shall 
have the right, but not the obligation, after ten (10) days’ written notice to 
the Homeowners Association, to perform any maintenance or repair work 
that, in the sole opinion of the Village, the Homeowners Association has 
neglected to perform on the common areas; to assess the membership for 
that work; and to enforce the lien in the matter provided by law for mortgage 
foreclosure proceedings. 
2.03 Binding Nature and Amendment of Declaration.  This declaration shall 
run with and bind any and all portions of the property and shall be binding on 
the owners, and their successors in interest, to all portions of the property; 
provided, however, that the declaration may provide for its amendment, 
modification, or termination at any time upon obtaining the prior consent of the 
village to set amendment, modification, or termination. 
 

 
ARTICLE 3 

MEMBERSHIP AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

3.01 Membership. Every owner of a Unit shall be a member of the 
Association. Membership shall be appurtenant to and may not be 
separated from ownership of any Unit. Ownership of a Unit shall 
be the sole qualification for membership. The Owner’s Association 
shall be formed prior to the sale of the property. 

 
3.02 Voting Rights. The Association shall have one class of membership 

and each member shall have one vote for each Unit such member 
owns, provided that in no event shall more than one (1) vote be cast 
with respect to any Unit. If more than one person is the record owner 
of any Unit, or if an Owner is a trustee, corporation, partnership or 
other legal entity, the vote for such Unit shall be exercised as such 
Owner of that Unit shall designate. Such designation shall be made 
in writing to the Board (as defined herein) or in such other manner 
as may be provided in the by-laws of the Association attached hereto 
Exhibit "C" (the "By-Laws"). Developer shall designate the person 
who shall exercise the voting rights with respect to the Units owned 
by Declarant. 
 

3.03 Board of Directors. The Association shall be governed by a Board 
of Directors (the "Board") comprised of not less than three (3) 
persons, duly appointed or elected as provided herein and in the By-
Laws, provided, however that the number of persons comprising the 
Board may be increased, in the discretion of Developer, by written 



 5 

notice to the Association provided, further, that in no event shall the 
number of persons comprising the Board exceed eight (8) persons. 
Except for Directors appointed by Developer, all Directors shall be 
members of the Association. The Board shall govern the 
Association in the exercise of the rights of the Association and 
performance of the Associations obligations in accordance with the 
terms and provisions of the Declaration and the By-Laws, as 
amended from time to time. Prior to the appointment of the first 
Board, the Developer shall exercise all rights, powers and privileges 
and act in the capacity of the Board and may perform all its functions 
set forth in this Declaration and the By-Laws. 

 
3.04 Appointment of Directors. Notwithstanding anything in this 

Declaration or the By-Laws to the contrary, the first and each 
subsequent Board shall consist of, and vacancies on the Board shall 
be filled by, such persona as Developer shall from time to time 
appoint, who may need not be members of the Association, until the 
first to occur of any one of the following events: (a) the expiration 
of ninety (90) days after the sale and transfer of title by Declarant of 
seventy five (75%) percent of the total number of units, including 
Units to be added-on; (b) three (3) years after the later to occur of 
the recording of this Declaration or the recording of the add-on 
Declaration amended to add additional property as provided herein; 
© Developer, by written notice to the Association, voluntarily elects 
to release its right to appoint all member of the Board. Without prior 
written consent of Developer, from time to time, by written notice 
to the Association, elect to relinquish its right to appoint the 
remaining members of the Board for the period herein above 
specified. All Directors not appointed by Developer shall be elected 
as hereinafter provided. Election of Directors by Members.  Upon 
termination of Developer’s right to appoint any or all of the 
directors.as provided in the preceding paragraph, those Directors not 
subject to appointment by Developer shall be elected by members 
of the Association at a meeting called by the President of the 
Association, by Developer, or by any three (3) members of the 
Association. Such meeting shall be called by notice sent in 
accordance with the By-Laws. 
 

3.05 Election of Directors by Members.  Upon termination of 
Developer’s right to appoint any or all of the directors.as provided 
in the preceding paragraph, those Directors not subject to 
appointment by Developer shall be elected by members of the 
Association at a meeting called by the President of the Association, 
by Developer, or by any three (3) members of the Association. Such 
meeting shall be called by notice sent in accordance with the By-
Laws. 

 
3.06 Director and Officer Liability.  Neither the Developer, who in their 

representative capacity acts as either a Director and/or officer, nor 
the Directors, nor the officers, shall be personally liable to the 



 6 

Owners or the Association for any mistake of judgment or for any 
other acts or omissions of any nature whatsoever, including but not 
limited to deficiencies in the reserve account and/or failure to fund 
the reserve account, while acting in the capacity of such Directors 
or officers, except for any acts or omissions found by the Court to 
constitute gross negligence or fraud. The Association shall 
indemnify and hold harmless the Directors or officers, theirs and 
legal representatives, against all contractual and other liabilities to 
third parties arising out of contracts made by or other acts of the 
Directors and officers on behalf of the Owners or the Association or 
arising out of their status as Directors or officers, unless any such 
contract made by or other acts shall have been made fraudulently or 
with gross negligence. The foregoing indemnification shall include 
indemnification against all costs, fees, fines and expenses (including, 
but not limited to, attorney's fees, amounts of judgment paid and 
amounts paid in settlement) actually and reasonably incurred in 
connection with the defense of any claim, action, suit or proceeding, 
whether civil, criminal, administrative or other, in which any such 
Director or officer may be involved by virtue of being or having been 
such Director or officer; provided, however, that such person shall 
have finally been adjudged in such action, suit or proceeding to be 
liable for gross negligence or fraud in the performance of his/her 
duties as Director or officer, or (ii) any matter compromised, unless, 
in the opinion of independent counsel selected by or in a manner 
determined by the Board, there is not reasonable ground for such 
person being adjudged liable for gross negligence or fraud in the 
performance of his/her duties as such Director or officer. 
 

3.07 Governing Law.  Except as otherwise provided in this Declaration, 
the Association, its Board, the officers and members of the 
Association shall be governed by the Illinois general not-for-profit 
act.   

 
ARTICLE 4 

EASEMENT AND PROPERTY RIGHTS 
 
                                4.01 Easements of Use and Enjoyment. Declarant hereby grants a 

perpetual, non- exclusive easement, over and upon the Common Area 
for the benefit of the Property, and every Owner shall have a right and 
easement, of use and enjoyment and a right of access to and of 
pedestrian and vehicular ingress and egress on, over, across, in, upon 
and to the Common Area, and such right easement shall be 
appurtenant to and shall pass with title to every Unit, subject to the 
rights of Declarant and Developer reserved in this Declaration, and the 
rights of others granted in this Declaration and the following rights of 
the Association exercised in the manner provided in the By-Laws: 

 
a. To adopt rules and regulations governing the use, operation and 

maintenance of the Common Area. 
 



 7 

b. To borrow money for the purpose of improving the Common Area 
and facilities located therein and with respect to any recreational 
facilities comprising a part of the Common Area in aid thereof to 
mortgage the part of the Common Area, provide that rights of any 
such mortgage in and to the Common Area and facilities located 
thereon shall, in the event of default, be limited to a right, after 
taking possession of such properties, to charge admission and other 
fees for the use enjoyment by the Owners of any recreational 
facilities that may be situated thereon until the mortgage debt is 
satisfied, whereupon the possession of such properties shall be 
returned to the Association and all rights of the Owners hereunder 
shall fully be restored. Notwithstanding the foregoing, no mortgage 
shall be placed upon the Common Area unless such mortgage is 
approved by the Board, by a majority of the members of the 
Association, other than Declarant, voting at a general election or 
special meeting dully called and held with required notice to the 
member in accordance with the By-Laws; and by the First 
Mortgagee as provided in Section 7.01; provided that as long as 
Declarant owns or more Units, Developer's written consent to any 
such mortgage shall also be required. 

 
c. To dedicate or transfer all or any part of the Common Area, or any 

utility system thereon, to any public agency, authority of utility for 
such purposes and subject to such conditions as may be agreed to 
by members provided that as long as the Developer has the power 
to appoint any Director of the Association, such instrument must 
also be signed by Developer. 

 
d. To pay for, out of the assessment fund, all taxes and assessments 

and other liens and encumbrances that shall be assessed or charged 
against the Common Area. 

 
4.02 Easement of Access. 
   
 a. Every Owner, their guests and invitees is hereby granted 

and reserved a perpetual non-exclusive easement for the purpose of 
reasonable vehicular and pedestrian ingress and egress from his/her 
Unit to, through and from all common, public and private ways 
which adjoin the Property through, over and across the Access Area; 
provided, however, that no Owner may remove, relocate, or cause 
to be removed or relocated, any portion of the Access Area now or 
hereafter located upon his/her Unit. 

 
 b. The Association, Declarant, Developer, and each of 

them, is hereby granted and reserved perpetual non-exclusive 
easements to, threw, over and across the Property and Common 
Area for the purposes of exercising the rights, performing the 
functions, and discharging the responsibilities, permitted or 
required to be performed or discharged by any of them pursuant 
to any provision of this Declaration.   

 



 8 

4.03 Municipal Service Easements. Declarant hereby grants a 
perpetual non-exclusive easement to the applicable 
governmental entity over the Property to enforce all applicable 
laws, ordinance and regulations and for the purpose of providing 
applicable laws, ordinances and regulations and for the purpose 
of providing police and fire protection and such other municipal 
services as the Association may request and the applicable 
governmental entity may agree to furnish. Furthermore, the 
applicable governmental entity and any other governmental 
authority having jurisdiction over the Property are hereby 
granted an easement to enter upon, on and over the Property for 
the purpose of inspecting the Property to determine whether the 
Common Area improvements, facilities and systems have been 
and are being properly maintained in conformity with the 
applicable ordinances and regulations. If it is determined that 
inadequate maintenance exists, the governmental authority shall 
give the Association written notice of such determination, 
including a description of the actions that must be taken to 
perform the necessary maintenance. If the Association fails to 
perform necessary maintenance within a reasonable amount of 
time after receiving notice of the determination, the 
governmental authority shall have the right, but not the 
obligation to perform such maintenance or other operations it 
deems necessary. If the governmental authority is required to 
perform such service, it shall be entitled to reimbursement by the 
Association (including expenses, reasonable attorney's fees and 
Court costs). In the event the Association fails to pay such bill 
within the time required, the governmental authority may place 
and enforce a lien, pro-rata against each Unit, which lien and 
right of recovery shall include expenses, reasonable attorney's 
fees, and Court costs. Failure of the governmental authority to 
exercise or enforce its rights in any particular circumstances shall 
not be deemed a waiver of its rights. Notwithstanding any other 
provision of this Declaration, the rights granted to governmental 
authority under this section shall not be modified in any manner 
without the written approval of the governmental authority.  

 
4.05 Utility Easement. The Declarant, the Association, and their 

respective  representative, employees and contractors and every 
subsequent Owner along with the local telephone company, 
Comcast Communications, Commonwealth Edison, Nicor Gas, 
Peoples' Gas, the applicable governmental authority, and all other 
suppliers of utilities serving the property, are hereby granted and 
reserved a perpetual non-exclusive easement for the benefit of the 
Property, in, over, under, to and across the Property (including the 
Unit) for the installation, laying, construction, operation, 
maintenance, renewal, repair and replacement of any and all public 
and private utility conduits, cables, wires, ducts, pipes, sewer and 
water lines and other lines, and all associated equipment for the 
provision of utility services to the Property, including without 
limitation, those for transmission and distribution of water, 
electricity, gas, telephone, common sewer line, drainage, cable or 
satellite and Directv television. For so long as Declarant owns a Unit 



 9 

subject to the terms hereof, Developer shall have the right to connect 
to all utilities serving the Property. 

 
4.06 Implied Easements. Declarant hereby acknowledges that, due to the 

length and complexity of this Declaration, certain omissions may 
have occurred in  connection with grants of various easement 
including, but not limited to, those for access, ingress and egress, 
use and enjoyment, utilities, light, and air support and maintenance. 
Declarant therefore hereby grants any easement omitted herein 
which easement reasonably implied from and by the provisions and 
scheme of this Declaration and is reasonably necessary for the 
purpose of furthering the beneficial purposes and intentions of 
Declarant as expressed in this Declaration. 

 
4.07  Encroachments. In the event that (a) by reason of design, 

construction, location, repair, settlement, shifting or movement, any 
dwelling or other improvement as originally constructed by 
Developer or any Unit or upon the Common Area overhangs or 
otherwise encroaches or shall hereafter overhang or encroach upon 
any other Unit or upon the Common Area, or (b) by reason of such 
design, construction, location, repair, settlement, shifting or 
movement, it shall be necessary or advantageous to the Owner to use 
or occupy any portion of the Common Area for any reasonable use 
appurtenant thereto which will not unreasonably interfere with the use 
or enjoyment of the Common Area by other Owners, or © by reason of 
the design or construction of utility, ventilation and exhaust systems as 
originally constructed by the Developer, or any mains, pipes, ducts, air 
conditioning units, or conduits servicing any Unit, or more than one 
Unit, encroach or shall hereafter encroach upon any part of any Unit, 
or the Common Area, then, in any such case, the valid easement for 
maintenance of such encroachment and for such use of the Common 
Area, together with the right to enter upon such other Unit or Common 
Area to maintain, repair and replace such encroachment, are hereby 
established and shall exist for the benefit of such Unit or the Common 
Area, as the case may be, so long as such dwelling or other 
improvement shall remain standing; provided, however, that if any 
such dwelling or other improvement is partially or totally destroyed 
and thereafter repaired or rebuilt, the same encroachment may be re-
established and the easements herein granted for the maintenance, 
repair and replacement thereof shall continue in force; provide further 
that in no event shall a valid easement for any encroachment or use of 
Common Area be created in favor of any Owner if such encroachment 
or use is detrimental to or interferes with the reasonable use and 
enjoyment of the Common Area by other or if it occurred due to the 
willful conduct of any Owner.  

 
4.08 Transfer of Common Area to Association.  Declarant will convey 

the Association and the Association shall accept the Common Area 
herein described and any additions thereto, together with such facilities 
and improvements as the Developer may elect to install thereon and 
subject to such easements as the Developer may cause to be placed 
hereon, and at such time or times as the Developer shall determine, 
provided that all Common Area shall be conveyed to the Association 
by the date upon which the Developer shall cease to have the right to 



 10 

appoint one or more members of the Board. At the time of any such 
conveyance to the Association, the Association shall assume and agree 
to perform the obligations of the Declarant, Developer and the 
Association under this Declaration with respect to the property so 
conveyed. 

 
4.09 Agreement for Grant of Easement. In the event, at any time after 

the recording of this Declaration, Declarant or Developer shall 
deem necessary to do so, Declarant may: 

 
(i) reserve or grant easements for the benefit of the Property in, 

over, under, to and across the Property for the installation, 
construction and maintenance of any public and private 
conduits, wires, ducts pipes, cables and other lines, and all 
associated equipment for the provision of utilities services 
for the Property, including without limitation, those for 
transmission and distribution of water, electricity, gas, 
telephone, sewage, drainage, cable, satellite, dish television, 
and 

(ii) (ii) dedicate any portion of the Common Area to any public 
or quasi-public utility or to any governmental authority for 
installation, construction and maintenance of any such 
utilities and for ingress, egress thereto. For so long as 
Declarant owns a Unit subject to the terms hereof, Developer 
shall have the right to connect to all utilities serving the 
property. 

(iii) Rights of Occupants. All persons who reside on a Unit shall 
have the same rights to use and enjoy the Common Area and 
all improvements situated thereon as the Owner of that Unit 

 
4.10 Easements to Run with the Land. All easements and rights described 

herein are easements appurtenant, running with the land, perpetually 
in full force and effect, and at all times shall inure to the benefit of 
and be binding upon the Declarant, its successors or assigns, and any 
Owner, purchaser, buyer, mortgagee or other person having an 
interest in the Existing Property, or any part or portion thereof.  
Reference in the respective deeds of conveyance or in any mortgage or 
trust deed or other evidence of obligation to the easements and rights 
described in this Article or in any other part of this Declaration shall be 
sufficient to create and reserve such easements and rights to the 
respective grantees, mortgagees, or trustees as fully and completely as 
though such easements and rights were recited fully and set forth in 
their entirety in such documents. 

 
4.11 Non-Dedication to Public Use. Nothing contained in this 

Declaration shall be construed or be deemed to constitute a 
dedication, express or implied, of any part of the Property to or for 
any public use or purpose whatsoever. 

 
4.12 Certain Rights Reserved to Developer. The right is reserved by 

Declarant for Developer, or its agents, to place and maintain on the 



 11 

Property all models, sales offices, site construction trailer, 
advertising signs and banners and lighting in connection therewith, 
and other promotional facilities at such locations and in such forms 
as shall be determined by Developer. There is also reserved to 
Developer, its agents and prospective purchasers and tenants, the 
rights of ingress, egress and transient parking in and through the 
Property. Declarant also reserves the right for Developer to maintain 
on the Property without charge (i) a general office for the purpose of 
exercising development and management rights and (ii) appropriate 
permanent and transient parking facilities for the employees of 
Developer and of Developer's agents and for prospective purchasers 
of lots in the Property.  Developer's aforesaid reserved rights shall 
exist at any time Developer is engaged in the sale or leasing of lots 
on the Property, and no charge shall be made with respect thereto. In 
connection therewith, Declarant hereby reserve for the benefit of 
Developer a non-exclusive easement to, through, over and across the 
Property for the purpose of exercising the rights reserved to 
Developer pursuant to this Declaration. Such rights of Developer 
shall continue until the sale or rental of all Units located on the 
Property unless Developer, by written notice to the Association, elects 
to terminate such rights prior to such date. All rights and easements 
created by this Declaration are subject and subordinate to the 
development rights of Developer, whether or not inconvenience to any 
Owner shall result therefrom; provided, however, that Developer shall 
not exercise any of such rights in a manner so as to prevent the exercise 
of the rights of use and enjoyment of the Common Area. 

 

ARTICLE 5 
OBLIGATIONS OF ASSOCIATION AND OWNERS 
WITH RESPECT TO MAINTENANCE, 
ADMINISTRATION OF REAL ESTATE TAXES AND 
INSURANCE COVERAGE OF THE PROPERTY 

 
5.01 Association's Obligations. In addition to all other rights, powers 

and duties the Association under applicable law or as otherwise set 
forth in the Declaration and in the By-Laws of the Association, the 
Association shall have the following rights, power, duties with 
regard to the Common area, Non-maintenance Areas, and Units 
respectively, the cost and expense of which shall be paid for by the 
Association from assessment funds: 

 

a. Common Area. The Association shall maintain, repair, replace and 
manage the Common Area and the Non-maintenance Area with 
continuity, care, conservation, maintenance and operation in a first rate 
condition, and in accordance with the predetermined standards of the 
Municipality of Morton Grove, Illinois.  All the facilities and 
improvements thereon, and without limiting the generality of the 
foregoing, The Association will provide for snow removal and 
landscaping, at a minimum level, as defined by its Board, provide 
for scavenger services if not separately assessed to each Owner, 



 12 

maintain, repair and/or replace the entrance monuments, if any, the 
privacy wood fences, the underground sprinkler system, if any, the 
retaining walls, if any, the offsite detention/retention areas as 
necessary, the storm water management system, all maintained 
continuously in full force with comprehensive liability, hazard and 
other insurance. Additionally, maintain all underground utilities 
located in the Common Area serving the Property (including water 
pipes, sanitary and storm sewer lines, telephone and electrical cables 
and gas mains) to the extent that the responsibility to maintain such 
utilities has not been assumed by any public utility agency, the 
applicable governmental entity, the Sanitary District, the or any 
other governmental authority or agency, or any Owner, pay all taxes, 
assessment and other liens and encumbrances which are assessed to 
or charged against the Common Area or other property owned by 
the Association, pay all sums due the applicable governmental entity 
for the enforcement of local laws and provide such other services 
for the Common Area as the Board deems to be in the best interest 
of the Association and its members. Additionally, the Association 
shall maintain, repair and or replace any landscaping that dies or 
decays, mow all existing grass and maintain the landscaping 
adjacent to the public walkways located in the frontage of the 
Beckwith Road right of way. 

b. Real Estate Taxes. It is understood that real estate taxes are to be 
separately taxed to each Owner on their individual Unit. In the event 
the Unit real estate taxes are not issued a separate real estate tax bill, 
then, in such case, the amount due from each Owner shall be 
allocated between each Owner and the Developer as follows and 
shall be determinative as to each Owner’s share whether or not said 
calculations are in conflict with the Assessor's calculations: (i) the 
vacant land estimated or final tax bill shall be determined by 
multiplying the current vacant land assessment by the most recent 
ascertainable state and local equalizer (vacant land portion) and by 
then dividing the vacant land portion of the tax bill by the number 
of Units in the applicable phase of the Development and by dividing 
same by 365/366 to obtain the per diem (per diem), and by then 
multiplying number of days the Developer and Owner each owned 
the Unit to obtain the Developer's and the Owner's vacant share; (ii) 
the improvement estimated  of final tax bill shall be allocated 
between the Owners only (not including the Developer who shall 
not be responsible for payment of any taxes assessed on an 
improvement basis) and shall be determined by dividing the number 
of days each Owner owned their Unit into the multiple of 365/366 
multiplied by the number of Units in the applicable phase of the 
Development to obtain each Owners’ percentage share of the total 
improvement assessment (Owners’ Percentage) and each Owners 
Percentage shall be multiplied by the current improvement 
assessment multiplied by the most recent ascertainable state and 
local equalizer (improved portion) to obtain each Owners 
improvement share. In the event and Owner fails to pay his/her share 
within a reasonable time after the tax bill is issued, the Association 



 13 

shall pay the outstanding tax bill and charge the cost thereof to such 
Owner as his/her personal obligation. Any real estate tax payment 
made by the Association shall be a continuing lien upon the 
nonpaying Owner's Unit in the aggregate amount (i) the cost thereof, 
(ii) penalties and interest lawfully assessed by County and (iii) 
reasonable attorney's fees and any Court or other costs incurred by 
the Association in connection therewith, which lien shall bind such 
Unit in the hands of such Unit Owner(s), their heirs, devisees, 
personal representatives, grantees and assigns. In the event the 
Owner does not fully repay the Association within 30 days after 
payment of their Units' real estate taxes, such lien may be foreclosed 
against the Unit and shall be enforceable in the manner and to the 
extent herein set forth this Declaration and the failure of such Owner 
to pay such costs shall carry with it the consequences as the failure 
to pay any assessments levied hereunder when due, as herein 
provided. 
 

5.02 Owner's Obligations. The Owner shall have the following duties 
with regard to their Units, the cost and expense of which shall be 
paid by the Owner:  
 

a. Units. Each Owner, at his sole cost and expense, shall maintain, 
repair and replace his Unit and the improvements thereon, keeping 
the same sightly and in good condition and repair, the extent that 
the responsibility to maintain same has not been assumed by the 
Association, any public utility agency, the applicable 
governmental entity or other governmental authority or agency, 
including, without limitation:(i) the watering and replacement of 
shrubs, trees, grass and other landscaping; (ii) privacy wood 
fences, decks and/ or patios (iii) screens, doors, windows and glass 
surfaces;(iv) snow removal from decks, patios, roofs;(v) window 
washing and repair; (vi) all scavenger services; and (vii) 
maintenance of all underground utilities serving his/her Unit. Each 
Owner shall be responsible for the cost of maintenance, repair and 
replacement of such exterior surfaces, walks and landscaping on 
his/her Unit resulting from causes other than normal wear and tear, 
including, without limitation, to damage caused by acts of God or 
other hazards (whether or not covered by insurance) or by the 
negligence or willful or wanton conduct of the Owner or any 
person (except that the Association shall be liable for any damage 
to a Unit or any improvements thereon caused by negligence or 
willful, wanton or intentional acts of an employee, agent or 
independent contractor of the Association while acting for on 
behalf of the Association). In the event any Owner shall fail to 
perform any of the foregoing obligations, the Association, in 
addition to all other remedies available to it hereunder or by law, 
and without waiving any of said alternate remedies, shall have the 
right (but not the obligation), through its employees and agents or 
through independent contractor's upon reasonable notice or, in the 
case of an emergency, without notice, to enter upon any Unit and 



 14 

the improvements situated thereon. Each Owner, by acceptance of 
a deed for his/her Unit, hereby covenants and agrees to pay the 
Association the cost of such repairs and maintenance, upon 
demand, and the Association shall have a lien upon such Unit 
enforceable in the manner and to the extent herein set forth in this 
Declaration and the failure of such Owner to pay such costs shall 
carry with it the same consequences as the failure to pay any 
assessments levied hereunder when due, as herein provided. The 
Association shall be responsible for and shall repair any damage 
caused by it in the exercise of its rights hereunder. 
 

b. Insurance. The Owner shall keep the Unit, as well as his/her 
additions and improvements therein, constantly insured, covering 
the full insurable replacement cost of his/her Unit, for the benefit 
of the Association, against fire and other such hazards and risks 
customarily covered by the standard form of the extended 
coverage endorsement available in the State of Illinois where the 
Unit is located, including risks of vandalism and malicious 
mischief, and shall further provide flood insurance (if Unit is 
situated in an area designated as a flood risk area by the Director 
of the Federal Emergency Management Agency or as otherwise 
required by Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973 and regulations 
formed under it), and such other appropriate insurance as the 
Association may require from time to time.  
    All insurance policies and renewals must name the 
Association as an additional insured, must contain, if possible a 
waiver of subrogation rights by the insurer against the other Unit 
Owners and the Association, must be approved by and acceptable 
to the Association, must provide payment to the Association in the 
event of loss, must require thirty (30) days-notice to the Association 
in the event of non-renewal or cancellation, and must be delivered 
to the Association within thirty (30) days prior to their respective 
effective dates. Should the Owner fail to insure or fail to pay the 
premiums on any insurance or fail to deliver the policies or 
certificates or renewals to the Association, then the Association, at 
its option, without inquiry into whether or not the Unit is currently 
insured, may, but need not, have the insurance written or renewed 
and pay the premiums for the account of the Owner. All sums paid 
for procurement or renewal of the insurance premium, for 
enforcement of collection, and all expenses paid or incurred in 
connection therewith, including attorney’s fees, shall become a lien 
upon said Unit enforceable in the manner and to the extent herein 
set forth in this Declaration, and the failure of such Owner to pay 
such costs shall carry with it the same consequences as the failure 
to pay any assessments levied hereunder when due, as herein 
provided. Inaction of the Association shall not act as any default 
hereunder on the part of the Owner.  Additionally, the Homeowner’s 
Association shall be responsible for casualty and liability insurance for the 
Common Areas, and the Village of Morton Grove, its elected and 
appointed officials, agents and employees shall be named as an additional 
insured on all policies of liability obtained by the Homeowners’ 



 15 

Association.  
c. Repair and Reconstruction. In the event of damage to or destruction 

of any dwelling or other improvement installed by Developer on 
any Unit, the Owner or Owners from time to time of any such 
improvement covenant and agree that they will, within a reasonable 
amount of time after such destruction, repair or rebuild the same in 
a substantial and workmanlike manner with materials comparable 
to those used in the original structure, and shall conform in all 
respects to the laws or ordinances regulating the construction of 
such structures in force at the time of 
such repair or reconstruction. The exterior of such structure, when 
rebuilt, shall be substantial the same as and architectural design in 
conformance with the exterior of such structure immediately prior to 
such damage or destruction. If an Owner fails to make the necessary 
repairs or reconstruction within a reasonable amount of time after 
such damage or destruction occurs, the Board may cause the same 
to be done and the cost thereof shall be charged to such Owner as 
his/her personal obligation and shall be a continuing lien upon said 
Unit to which any repair or rebuilding is furnished by the 
Association in the aggregate amount of (i) the cost thereof, (ii) 
interest at eighteen percent (18%) or at the maximum rate permitted 
by the laws of Illinois, and (iii) reasonable attorney's fees and any 
Court or other costs incurred by the Association in connection 
therewith, which lien shall bind such Unit in the hands of such Unit 
Owner(s), their heirs, devisees, representatives, grantees and assigns. 
In the event the Unit Owner does not fully repay the Association 
within thirty (30) days after repair and/or reconstruction, such lien 
may be foreclosed against the Unit and shall be enforceable in the 
manner and to the extent herein set forth in this Declaration and the 
failure to pay any assessments levied hereunder when due, as herein 
provided. 
 

5.03 Maintenance of the Common Area Prior to Conveyance to Association. 
Notwithstanding the retention by Declarant of title to all or any 
portion of the Property designated as Common Area, the Association 
shall pay or reimburse the Developer for all real estate taxes and all 
other costs and expenses arising out of or incident to the ownership, 
maintenance and repair of such portion of the Common Area that is 
available for use by the Owners to the same extent as such costs and 
expenses would be the obligation of the Association if it were the 
record Owner thereof.  Furthermore, when necessary, the 
Association shall maintain, repair and or replace the driveway apron 
from Beckwith Road to the Premises.   

 
5.04 Condemnation. In the case of a condemnation or taking by eminent 

domain (a "taking") by competent authority or any part of the 
Common Area, the Association shall, if necessary, restore the 
improvements in the remaining portions of the Common Area to 
conform as closely as possible to the general design, structure and 
materials used with respect to the improvements as they existed prior 



 16 

to the taking. Any proceeds or awards made to the Association in 
connection with any such taking shall be applied first to the cost of 
any restoration , with the balance to be used by the Association to 
carry out obligations under this Declaration. 

 
ARTICLE 6 

COVENANT FOR ASSESSMENTS 
 

6.01 Creation of the Lien and Personal Obligation for Assessments. Each 
Owner of a Unit (excluding Declarant), by acceptance of a deed 
therefor, whether or not it shall be so expressed in any such deed or 
other conveyance, hereby covenants and agrees and shall be deemed 
to covenants and agree to pay to the Association, for each Unit 
owned by such Owner, all assessments and charges levied pursuant 
to this Declaration. Such assessments, together with such interest 
thereon and costs of collection thereof, as hereinafter provided, shall 
be a charge and a continuing lien upon the Unit against which such 
assessment is made. Each such assessment together with such 
interest and costs, shall also be the continuing personal obligation of 
the person who was the Owner of the such Unit at the time when 
such assessment fell due. Percentage unit ownership shall be based 
upon the value assigned by the Declarant at the time the four parcels 
are marketed, and the percentages may vary based upon market 
value of each parcel.  At no time shall any parcel have a percentage 
unit ownership of more than 50% 

 
6.02 Purpose of Assessments. The assessments levied by the Association 

shall be used for the purpose of promoting the recreation, health, 
safety and welfare of the members of the Association and, in 
particular, without limiting the foregoing, for maintenance, repair, 
replacement, improvement and additions of an to the Common Area 
and the improvements thereon, for all taxes, insurance utilities, 
professional and other services, materials, supplies, equipment and 
other costs and expenses incident to the ownership of the Common 
Area and all facilities and improvements thereon, for certain 
maintenance, repair and replacement of portions of the Units and the 
exterior surfaces of certain improvements thereon, as herein above 
provided, and for otherwise carrying out the duties and obligations 
of the Board and of the Association as stated herein and in its 
Articles of Incorporation and  By-Laws. 

 
6.03 Assessment Procedure-Annual Assessments.  

 
a. Each year, on or before December 1st, the Board shall prepare 
for the Association, a budget for the next calendar year that shall 
include estimated cash expenditures and reasonable amounts as a 
reserve for repairs to and replacement of the improvements on the 
Common Area and those portions of the Units for which the 
Association is responsible, and for such other contingencies as 
Board may deem proper, and shall, on or before December 15th, 



 17 

notify each Owner in writing of the amount of such estimate, with 
reasonable itemization thereof. The budget shall also take into 
account the estimated net available cash income for the year, if any, 
that may be received by the Association. On or before January 1st of 
the ensuing year, each Owner, jointly and severally, shall be 
personally liable for and obligated to pay the Board or as it may 
direct, one-twelfth (1/12) of the assessment made pursuant to this 
Section. On or before April 15th of each year following the initial 
meeting, the Board shall supply to all Owners in an itemized 
accounting of actual expenses for the preceding calendar year 
actually incurred and paid, together with tabulation of the amounts 
collected pursuant to the estimate provided, and showing the net 
amount over or short of the actual expenditures plus reserves. Any 
amount accumulated in excess of the amount required for actual 
expenses and reserves shall be credited to the next monthly 
installment due under the current year's estimate until exhausted, and 
one-third (1/3) of any net shortage shall be added to the installments 
due in each of the succeeding three (3) months after rendering of the 
account. Such adjustment shall be allocated among the Units that 
were subject to assessment during the prior year in the proportion 
that the annual assessment against each Unit during the year bears to 
the annual assessment against all the Units during that year. 
 
b. The Homeowners Association shall have the right to adjust the 
assessment to meet changed needs except for any assessment imposed 
by the village. The membership vote required to authorize an adjustment 
shall not be fixed at more than 51% of the members voting on the issue.  
If said annual assessments prove inadequate for any reason, 
including non-payment of any owner’ s assessment, the Board may, 
subject to the limitations on use of the capital reserves, charge the 
deficiency against existing reserves subject to assessment, or may 
levy a further assessment which shall be assessed equally against all 
Units. The Board shall serve notice of such further assessment on all 
Owners by a statement in writing showing the amount due and 
reasons therefore, and such further assessment shall become 
effective with the monthly installment which is due no more than 
fifteen (15) days after the delivery or mailing of such notice of 
further assessment. All Owners shall be personally liable for and 
obligated to pay their respective monthly assessment. 
 
c. When the first Board elected hereunder takes office, it shall 
prepare a budget for the period commencing thirty (30) days after 
said election and ending on December 31st of the year in which 
said election occurs. Monthly assessments shall be levied against 
all Units subject to assessment during said period as provided in 
Section 6.01 hereof. 
 
d. The failure or delay of the Board to prepare or serve the 
annual or adjusted- estimate on any Owner shall not constitute 
a waiver or release in any manner of such Owner's obligation 
to pay the maintenance costs and necessary reserves, as herein 



 18 

provided, whenever the same be determined, and in the 
absence of any annual estimates or adjusted estimate, the 
Owner shall continue to pay his/her monthly installment at the 
then existing rate established for the previous period until the 
monthly installment is due more than ten (l0) days after such 
new annual or adjusted estimate shall have been mailed or 
delivered. 
 
e. The entire collected assessment for the Association shall 
be shared equally between the four owners, or alternatively, if the 
Developer/Declarant determines percentage unit ownership in the 
document other than 25% per owner of the four parcels, the 
assessment shall be determined based upon the percentage unit 
ownership in the common elements.  The pro-rata share of the 
assessment for each owner shall be proportional to the EAV of the 
vacant land and the area of the lots. 

 
 Furthermore, the Homeowners Association shall have the right to 

adjust the assessments to meet changed needs except that any 
assessment imposed by the village, a required vote to authorize an 
adjustment to the assessments shall not be fixed at more than fifty-
one (51%) of the members voting on the issue. 

 
6.04  Special Assessments for Capital Improvements.  In addition to 

the annual assessments authorized above, the Board may levy 
special assessments for the purpose of defraying, in whole or in 
part, the cost of constructing or purchasing a specified capital 
improvement upon or to the Common Area, and for the 
necessary fixtures and personal property related thereto, 
provided that, unless otherwise provided in the By-Laws, any 
such assessments which in one year exceed $1,000.00 shall first 
be first approved by a majority of the Board and thereafter by a 
majority of the votes cast by members at a general or special 
meeting duly called for that purpose or, in lieu of such member's 
meeting, by an instrument signed by the members owning two-
thirds (2/3) of the Units. Special assessments levied hereunder 
shall be due and payable at such time to times and in such 
manner as shall be fixed by the Board, or, where applicable, as 
approved by the members and shall be used only for the specific 
purpose for which such assessment was levied. 

 
6.05 Capital Reserves. To the extent that annual budget includes an 

amount specifically designated as a capital reserve, each Owner 
shall, as to each installment of the annual assessment paid by 
him, be deemed to have made a non-refundable capital 
contribution to the Association in the proportion that the 
amount of such designated capital reserve bears to the total 
annual budget. Such proportion of each annual assessment 
installment paid to the Association shall be segregated and 
maintained by it in special capital reserve account to be used 



 19 

solely for making major repairs and replacements to the 
Common Area, to those portions of the Units and the 
improvements thereon which the Association is obligated to 
repair and replace in accordance with the provisions of this 
Declaration, and for the purchase of equipment to be used by 
the Association in connection with its duties hereunder. AT 
THE ELECTION OF THE DEVELOPER, THE 
RESERVE ACCOUNT MAY OR MAY NOT BE 
FUNDED, AND THE ANNUAL BUDGET MAY OR MAY 
NOT PROVIDE FOR THE COLLECTION OF CAPITAL 
RESERVE DURING THE PERIOD THAT THE 
DEVELOPER CONTROLS THE ASSOCIATION, 
EXCEPT SET FORTH IN SECTION 6.06 HEREIN 
BELOW. 
 

6.06 Initial Capital Contribution. At each closing of the sale of a Unit 
by the Declarant after recording the Declaration, the Owner 
purchasing such Unit will be required to make a capital 
contribution to the Association in an amount equal to three times 
the monthly installment of an annual assessment for such Unit 
then in effect. Such payment shall be held and used by the 
Association as working capital reserve. 

 
6.07 Notice and Quorum. Written notice of any meeting called for the 

purpose of authorizing special assessments which require approval 
of the members shall be sent to all members not less than fifteen 
(15) days not more than sixty (60) days in advance of such 
meeting. At the first meeting called, the presence of voting 
members, in person or by proxy, having sixty percent (60%) of the 
votes entitled to be cast shall constitute a quorum. If the required 
quorum is not present, another meeting may be called subject to 
the same notice requirement and the required quorum at the 
subsequent meeting shall be one-half (½) of the required quorum 
at the preceding meeting. No such subsequent meeting shall be 
held more than sixty (60) days following the preceding meeting. 

 
6.08 Uniform Assessments. Both annual and special assessments must 

be fixed as a uniform rate for all Units, provided that no Unit 
owned by the Declarant shall be subject to assessment unless the 
dwelling thereon is completed and is occupied. 

 
6.09 Commencement of Annual Assessments. Annual assessments 

shall commence upon conveyance of the first Unit by Declarant 
after the recording of this Declaration. 

 
6.10 Assessments on Units Owned by Declarant of Developer. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the monthly assessment for each 
Unit subject to assessment hereunder shall be established by the 
Developer. While the Declarant or Developer hold title to 



 20 

unoccupied Units and in lieu of paying monthly assessments on 
unsold units, the Developer shall pay to the Association only the 
amount, if any, by which actual operating expenses exceed the 
aggregate of the assessments established and due from Owners 
(excluding Declarant) pursuant to this paragraph. Actual operating 
expenses means those expenses actually incurred that are 
reasonably necessary to normal maintenance and operation of the 
Common Area and of those portions of the Units and 
improvements thereon which the Association is to provide 
pursuant to Section 5.0l(b), and does not include capital 
expenditures, reserves, prepaid items, inventory items or similar 
expenses to the extent attributable to any subsequent period. 
Except as set forth herein, the Developer shall have no obligation 
to pay assessments for unsold or unoccupied units. 
 

6.11 Collection of Assessments.  If an Owner is in default in the 
payment of the aforesaid charges or assessments for thirty (30) 
days, the members of the Board may bring suit for and on behalf 
of themselves and as representative of all Owners to enforce 
collection thereof or to foreclose the lien therefore as hereinafter 
provided; and there shall be added to the amount due legal interest 
and costs of said suit to include the managing agent's fees and 
costs attributable to collecting the delinquent assessments as well 
as reasonable attorney's fees and costs. To the extent permitted by 
any decision or any statute or law now or hereafter effective, the 
amount of any delinquent and unpaid charges or assessments, and 
interest, costs, and fees as above provided, shall be and become a 
lien or charge against the Owner involved when payable and may be 
foreclosed by an action brought in the name of the Board as in the 
case of foreclosure of liens against the real estate. Such lien shall take 
effect and be in force when and as provided in the Act; provided, 
however, that encumbrances owned or held by any bank, insurance 
company, savings and loan association, or other lender shall be 
subject as to priority after written notice to said encumbrancer of 
unpaid Assessments only to the lien of all Assessments on the 
encumbered Lots which become due and payable subsequent to the 
date the encumbrancer either takes possession of the Lot, accepts a 
conveyance of any interest in the Lot or has a receiver appointed in a 
suit to foreclose its lien. In addition to the foregoing, the Board, or its 
managing agents shall have such other rights and remedies to enforce 
such collection as shall otherwise be provided or permitted by law 
from time to time. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, if 
any Owner shall fail to pay the proportionate share of the Assessment 
or of any other expenses required to be paid hereunder upon due, such 
rights and remedies shall include: (i) the right to enforce the 
collection of such defaulting Owner's share of such expenses  
(whether due by acceleration or otherwise), together with penalties 
approved by the Board and interest thereof, at the maximum rate 
permitted by law, and all fees and costs (including managing agents' 
fees and attorney's fees and Court costs) incurred in the collection 



 21 

thereof; (ii) the right, by giving such defaulting Owner five (5) days 
written notice of the election of the Board to do so, to accelerate the 
maturity of the unpaid installments of such expenses accruing with 
respect to the balance of the assessment year; and (iii) the right to 
take possession of such defaulting Owner's interest in the 
Property, to maintain for the benefit of all the other Owners an 
action for possession in the manner prescribed in " an act in regard 
to Forcible Entry and Detainer, approved February 16, 1974, as 
amended, and to execute leases of such defaulting Unit Owner's 
interest in the Property and apply the rents derived therefrom 
against such expenses. 
 

6.12 No Waiver of Liability. No Owner may waive or otherwise escape 
liability for assessments provided for herein by any act or 
omission including without limitation non-use of the services 
provided by the Association, the Common Area or abandonment 
of his/her Unit.  

 
6.13 No Waiver of Liability. No Owner may waive or otherwise escape 

liability for assessments provided for herein by any act or 
omission including without limitation non-use of the services 
provided by the Association, the Common Area or abandonment 
of his/her Unit. 

                          ARTICLE 7 
RIGHTS OF FIRST MORTGAGEE 

 
In addition to all other rights of first mortgages pursuant to this 

Declaration, and notwithstanding any other provisions herein to the contrary: 
 

7.01 Right of Approval.  Unless at least seventy-five percent (75%) of 
the first mortgagees (based upon one vote for each Unit 
encumbered by a mortgage) of individual Units ("First 
Mortgagees") have given their prior written approval, the 
Association shall not: 

 
a. By act or omission seek to abandon, partition, subdivide, 

encumber, sell or transfer any real estate or improvements thereon, 
which are owned, directly or indirectly, by the Association for the 
benefit of the Units and the Owners. (The granting of easements 
for public utilities or for other purpose consistent with the intended 
use of such property by the Association shall not, for purpose of 
the foregoing, be deemed to be a transfer.) 

 
b. Change the method of determining the obligations, assessments, 

dues or other charges which may be levied against a Unit and the 
Owner thereof as provided in Article 6, subject, however, to the 
provision in Section 2.03 hereof. 

 
c. By act or omission waive, abandon or materially change any scheme 



 22 

or regulations or enforcement thereof pertaining to the architectural 
design or the exterior appearance of any dwelling or garage on a 
Unit, the exterior maintenance of any such dwelling or garage, the 
maintenance of party walls or common fences and driveways, or 
the upkeep of laws and planting on the Property. 
 

7.02 Examination of Books and Records. First Mortgagees shall have the 
right to examine the books and records of the Association at 
reasonable times during normal business hours. 

 
7.03 Option to Pay Taxes, Insurance Premiums. First Mortgagees may, 

jointly or singly, pay taxes or other charges which are in default and 
which may or have become a charge against the Common Area and 
may pay overdue premiums on hazard insurance policies or secure 
new hazard insurance coverage on the lapse of a policy for the 
Common Area and First Mortgage making such payments shall be 
owned immediate reimbursement from the Association. 

 
7. 04  Notice of Default. Any First Mortgagee, at its written request, shall 

be entitled to written notice from the board of any default by an 
Owner in the performance of such Owner's obligations hereunder 
or under the By-Laws or rules and regulations of the Association 
which has not been cured within thirty (30) days. 

 
7.05  Amendment. This Article 7 may be amended only with written 

consent of Seventy-five (75%) percent of the First Mortgagees 
(based upon one vote for each Unit encumbered by a mortgage) 
 

ARTICLE 8 
COVENANTS AND RESTRICTIONS AS TO USE AND OCCUPANCY 

 
The Units and Common Area shall be occupied and used only as follows: 

 
8.01 Residential Use. No part of the Property shall be used for the 

purposes other than housing, parking and related common purposes 
for which the Property was designed. Each dwelling shall be used 
as a residence for a single family and for no other purposes, subject 
to such reasonable rules and regulations as may be adopted by the 
Board. 
 

8.02 Parking. The outdoor driveways, shall be used for parking of 
vehicles, subject to such rules and regulations as the Board may 
proscribe and in compliance with the applicable governmental 
entity' s ordinance. No boats, trailers, or other prohibited vehicles 
or other property of any kind shall be parked or stored thereon 
unless permitted by such rules and regulations of the Board. The 
private road shall be used ingress and egress to, through and from 
the public ways, the Common Area, and the Units and for no other 
purpose. No passenger automobiles, boats, trailers, trucks, 



 23 

motorcycles, motor scooters, or other vehicles or property of any 
kind shall be parked, stopped or stored on the private road at any 
time unless permitted by such rules and regulations of the Board. 
Neither the Board nor the Association shall be considered the bailee 
of any personal property nor shall either be responsible for any loss 
or damage thereto, whether or not due to the negligence of the Board 
and/or the Association shall be considered the bailee of any personal 
property nor shall either be responsible for any loss or damage 
thereto, whether or not due to the negligence of the Board and/or the 
Association shall be considered the bailee of any personal property 
nor shall either be responsible for any loss or damage thereto, 
whether or not due to the negligence of the Board and/or the 
Association. 

8.03   Obstructions. There shall be no obstruction of the Common Area, 
nor shall   ready access to any Unit be obstructed or impeded in any 
manner. 

 
8.04   Waste. No Owner shall permit anything to be done or kept on his 

Unit or in the Common Area which will increase the rate charged 
for or cause the cancellation of insurance carried by the Association 
on the Common Area improvements or contents committed on any 
Unit or in the Common Area. 

 
8.05   Window Accessories.  The covering of windows and other glass   

surfaces, whether by shades, draperies or other items visible from 
the exterior of any dwelling, including canopies or awnings and 
antenna, shall be subject to the rules and regulations of the Board. 

 
8.06   Animals. No animals of any kind shall be raised, bred or kept for 

any commercial purposes on any Lot, except that customary 
household pets may be kept subject to the rules and regulations of 
the Association. Notwithstanding the foregoing, no more than a 
total of two (2) dogs or cats or other customary household pets 
not to exceed, in the cumulative, sixty (60 lbs.) pounds, may be 
kept. Any pet causing or creating a disturbance shall be permanently 
removed from the Property upon three (3) days written notice from 
the Board. 

 
8.07  Noxious Activities. No noxious or offensive activity shall be 

conducted on any Unit in the Common Area nor shall anything be 
done therein or thereon, either willfully or negligently, which may 
be or become an annoyance or a nuisance to other Owners or 
occupants. 

 
8.08 Conduct of Business. No industry, business, trade, occupation or 

profession of any kind, commercial, religious, educational or 
otherwise, designated for profit, altruism, exploration or otherwise, 
shall be conducted, maintained or permitted on any Unit or Common 
Area; provided, however, that nothing herein shall preclude an 
Owner from (i) maintaining a personal professional library on 



 24 

his/her Unit (ii) keeping his/her personal business records or 
accounts on his/her Unit (iii) handling his/her personal business or 
professional calls or correspondence therefrom, or (iv) a small home 
office which would not be considered a business or commercial 
office or generate a flow of traffic.  

 
8.09 Signs. No signs (including without limitation "For Sale" or "For 

Rent" signs), advertising or other displays shall be maintained or 
permitted on any part of the Property, except at such location and in 
such form as the Board may, in its sole discretion, approve. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the right is reserved by Developer or 
its agents to place and maintain on the Common Area or any Unit it 
owns, as long as Developer is engaged in the sales or leasing 
activities in connection with the property or any portion of the 
Additional Property (whether or not added to the Property), sales 
models, a sales or leasing office, advertising signs or banners and 
lighting in connection therewith, at such locations and in such forms 
as the Developer shall determine. Declarant hereby grants to 
Developed its agents and prospective purchasers and lessees, the 
right of ingress and egress in and through the Common Area and 
Access Area for or incident to such sales or leasing purposes and, 
during construction by the Developer, the right of ingress and egress 
in and through the Common Area in connection with such 
construction. The provisions of this said paragraph shall inure to the 
benefit of any assignee of Developer. 

8.10 Alterations. Except as constructed or altered by or with the 
permission of the Developer, nothing shall be altered or constructed 
in or removed from the Common Area except upon the written 
consent of the Board. 

8.11 Privacy Fence. Owners are not entitled to install an interior privacy 
fence, trees or landscaping on their lot within a drainage easement or 
over the storm sewer due to the potential adverse drainage impacts of 
installing a privacy fence that would likely affect multiple properties of 
the Association.  If an Owner desires to install any type of privacy 
fence, the Owner shall submit surveyed drawings and proposals by 
licensed and bonded contractors to the Association Board for review.  
The Association, at the submitting Owner’s expense, shall, in its 
discretion, hire an engineer or other qualified individual to review and 
approve the impact of the fence on the drainage easement.  The Owner, 
at the Owner’s expense,  expressly grants the Association the right to 
be the applicant for the fence permit with the Village of Morton Grove.  

 
       ARTICLE 9 

ARCHITECTURAL CONTROL 
 

9.01  General Review and Approval. No building, fence, wall, deck, 
porch,  antenna, awning or other structure shall be commenced, 
erected or maintained upon the Property or upon any exterior 



 25 

addition to or change or alteration therein be made, except such as 
are erected or approved by the Developer, until written plans and 
specifications showing the nature, kind, shape, height, materials, 
color scheme and location of the same and the approximate cost 
thereof shall have been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Board or by an architectural committee composed of three (3) or 
more representatives appointed by the Board. In the event the Board 
or its designated committee fail to approve or disapprove such 
design and location within ninety (90) days after said plans and 
specifications have been submitted to it, approval will not be 
required and this Article will be deemed to have been fully complied 
with. 
 

9.02 Television Antenna and Satellite Dish. Notwithstanding the 
provision of the Section immediately preceding, no outdoor television 
antenna and /or Satellite Dish shall be affixed to or placed upon the 
exterior walls or roof of any dwelling or other improvement on a Unit 
or upon any other portion of a Unit, or any portion of the Common 
Area, without prior written consent of the Board and the Developer; 
provided that an outdoor television antenna and other components of 
a community antenna television service system may be· affixed to or 
placed upon any Unit or improvement thereon and upon the Common 
Area only either the written consent of the Developer and no Board 
or other consent shall be required or be effective. 
 

9.03 Fences. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any fence installed upon the 
Property shall comply with all provisions of applicable law, and 
section 8.11 above. 

 
        ARTICLE 10 
    LEASE OF UNITS 

 
10.01  Any lease agreement between an Owner and  a Lessee shall be in 
writing, shall be for a period of not less than one year, the leased premises 
shall be for no less than the entire residence, and the lease shall provide that 
the terms of such lease are subject to, and such lessee shall comply with the 
provisions of this Declaration and the Articles of Incorporation, By-Laws 
and rules and regulations of the Association, and that failure by the lessee 
to comply with the terms of such documents, rules and regulations shall be 
a default under said lease. Other than the foregoing, there is no restriction 
on the right of any Owner, including Declarant or Developer, to lease any 
Unit it owns. The owner shall not lease the unit through ARBNB or similar 
type services for any period of time. If the Association has probable cause 
to determine a short term rental occurred, the Board shall send written 
notice of violation via email or otherwise to the Owner.  The Owner shall 
have 10 business days to request a hearing in writing to the Board.  A 
hearing shall be held within 30 days.  If the Board finds the Owner liable, 
the Board shall determine the number of days of the short term lease, and 
the fine shall be $500 per each day payable in 10 business days. 

 



 26 

   ARTICLE 11 
 GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

11.01  Management and other Contracts. The Developer hereby reserves 
the right, from time to time, for and on behalf of the Association, to engage 
a manager for the Association and its property during all or any portion of 
the period Developer has the right to appoint Directors to the Board. 
Thereafter, the Board may engage the services of an agent to manage the 
Property to the extent deemed advisable by the Board. Any management 
agreement shall be terminable by either party for cause upon thirty(30) days 
written notice, and the term of any such agreement may not exceed one (1) 
year, renewable by agreement of the parties for successive one-year 
periods. Any other contract providing for services by the Developer must 
provide for termination on ninety (90) days written notice and for a 
maximum term of three years. 
 

      ARTICLE 12 
       GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

12.01  Management and other Contracts. The Developer hereby reserves 
the right, from time to time, for and on behalf of the Association, to 
engage a manager for the Association and its property during all or 
any portion of the period Developer has the right to appoint 
Directors to the Board. Thereafter, the Board may engage the 
services of an agent to manage the Property to the extent deemed 
advisable by the Board. Any management agreement shall be 
terminable by either party for cause upon thirty(30) days written 
notice, and the term of any such agreement may not exceed one (1) 
year, renewable by agreement of the parties for successive one-year 
periods. Any other contract providing for services by the Developer 
must provide for termination on ninety (90) days written notice and 
for a maximum term of three years. 

12.02  Enforcement. The Board of  Directors of the Association shall 
have standing and capacity to act in a representative capacity on 
behalf of the Owners. In furtherance of the foregoing and in 
addition to all other rights herein granted to the Association, the 
Association, the unit Owners or the Village of Morton Grove 
may enforce the provisions of this Declaration and the Articles of 
Incorporation, By-Laws and rules and regulations of the 
Association by any proceeding at law or in equity against any 
person or persons violating or attempting to violate any such 
provisions. All rights and remedies may be exercised at any time 
and from time to time, cumulatively, or otherwise, and failure of the 
Association to enforce any such provision shall in no way be 
deemed a waiver of the right to do so thereafter. All expenses 
incurred by the Association in connection with any such 
proceedings, including Court costs and attorney's fees together 
with interest thereon at eighteen (18%) percent per annum, shall 
be added to and assessed against any Owner violating any such 



 27 

provisions and shall be added to and deemed a part of his/her 
assessment and constitute a lien on his/her Unit and be enforceable 
as provided in Article 6. 

 
12.03  Severability. If any term, restriction or covenant of this instrument 

is deemed illegal or unenforceable, all other terms, restrictions or 
covenants and the application thereof shall remain in affected tot 
extent permitted by law. 
 

12.04 Title in Land Trust. In the event title to any Unit is conveyed to a 
title-holding trust, under the terms of which powers of management, 
operation and control of the Unit remain vested in the trust 
beneficiary or beneficiaries, then the beneficiary or beneficiaries 
thereunder from time to time shall be responsible for payment of all 
obligations, liens or indebtedness and for the performance of all 
agreements, covenants and undertakings chargeable or created 
under this Declaration against such Unit. No claim shall be made 
against any such title- holding trustee personally for payment for 
payment of any lien or obligation hereunder created and the trustee 
shall not be obligated to sequester funds or trust property to apply 
in whole or part against such lien obligation. The amount of such 
lien or obligation shall continue to be a charge or lien upon the Unit 
and the beneficiaries of such trust notwithstanding any transfers of 
the beneficial interest of any such trust or any transfers of title to 
such Unit. 

12.05  Amendment Change, Modification or Rescission. No provision of 
this Declaration affecting or creating any of the rights, options, 
privileges or duties of the Declarant or Developer, including but not 
limited to the Declarant's or Developer's right to rent Units, may be 
amended, changed, modified or rescinded in any way without prior 
written consent of the Declarant/Developer. The provisions of this 
Paragraph 12.05 regarding Amendments to this document, shall 
only be amended, changed, modified, or rescinded by any 
instrument in writing setting forth such amendment, change, 
modification or rescission and signed, acknowledged and approved 
by the Board, the Developer and all of the Owners and all 
mortgagees having bona fide liens of record against any of the Unit 
Ownerships. Furthermore, this Declaration shall only be amended, 
modified or terminated by obtaining the prior consent of the Village 
to such amendment, modification or termination. Except for 
amendments to this Paragraph 12.05, and except as elsewhere 
provided in this Declaration, the provisions of this Declaration may 
only be amended, changed, modified or rescinded by an instrument 
in writing setting forth such amendment, change, modification or 
rescission and signed and acknowledged by the Board and approved 
by the Owners having at least seventy-five (75%) percent of the 
total vote at a meeting called for that purpose and approved by any 
mortgagees and containing an affidavit by an officer of the Board 
certifying that a copy of such instrument (without such affidavit) 
has been mailed to all mortgagees having bona fide liens of record 



 28 

against any Unit, not less than ten (l0) days prior to the date of such 
affidavit. Each instrument of amendment, change, modification or 
rescission, made in accordance with this Declaration, shall be 
effective upon the recording of such instrument in the office of the 
Recorder of Deeds of Cook County, Illinois. 

12.06  Special Amendment. Notwithstanding any other provision of this 
Declaration, the Declarant and the Developer and each of them singly 
reserves and shall have the right at any time and from time to time 
to record a Special Amendment to this Declaration to (i) conform 
this Declaration with requirements of any applicable local 
ordinance or the requirements of any institutional lender issuing a 
commitment to the Declarant, to the Developer or to a Purchase or 
(ii) correct clerical or typographical errors in this Declaration, or (iii) 
complete the data on the Plat after the improvements constructed at 
any time on the Parcel are completed by the Developer or (iv) 
modify or amend this Declaration so long as such modifications and 
amendments shall not materially impair the rights of Owners. In 
furtherance of the foregoing, each Owner and each holder of 
mortgage, trust deed, or lien affecting any Unit and each person 
having any other interest in the Property hereby grants to the 
Declarant and Developer and each of them (and the Declarant 
hereby reserves for each of them) an irrevocable power attorney 
coupled with an interest on behalf of each Owner and each such 
holder or person to make, sign and record on behalf of each Owner 
and each such holder and person any amendment described in this 
Paragraph 12.06. 
 
 

  



 29 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

               LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 

BECKWITH CROSSING SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE WEST HALF OF 
THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 18, TOWNSHIP 41 NORTH, 
RANGE 13 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, IN THE 
VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS  
ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED _________, 
2020 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER __________, IN COOK COUNTY, 
ILLINOIS 
 
 

  



 30 

EXHIBIT “1A” 
ADDRESS LIST  

 
 

LOT #1: 6727 BECKWITH ROAD, MORTON GROVE, ILLINOIS 60053 

LOT #2: 6729 BECKWITH ROAD MORTON GROVE, ILLINOIS 60053 

LOT #3: 6731 BECKWITH ROAD MORTON GROVE, ILLINOIS 60053 

LOT #4: 6733 BECKWITH ROAD MORTON GROVE, ILLINOIS 60053 

 

 
 
 

 



   
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT F 
 

Maintenance Agreement and Guarantee 
Dated August 26, 2021 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 





Submitted by: Ralph E. Czerwinski, Village Administrator 
Reviewed by: Teresa Hoffman Liston, Corporation Counsel  
Reviewed by: Joe Dahm, Director Public Works 
Prepared by: Chris Tomich, Village Engineer 
   

Legislative Summary  
 

Resolution 21-55 
 

AUTHORIZING A TASK ORDER WITH CIORBA GROUP, INC.  
FOR ALBERT DAVIS WATER MAIN IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

Introduced: September 13, 2021 
  
Purpose: To authorize the Village Administrator to execute a task order for Ciorba Group, 

Inc. to complete design engineering for Albert Davis Water Main Improvements 
Project.  

  
Background: The Public Works Department is prioritizing replacement of its water main 

crossing under North Branch Chicago River in order to reduce vulnerability of the 
distribution system to supply water to its customers on the east side of the Village. 
A segment of the water main within the forest preserve near Albert Avenue and 
Davis Street is a high priority for replacement. The engineering needs exceed the 
expertise and capacity of Engineering Division staff. 

Resolution 18-08, approved on January 22, 2018, authorized staff to negotiate a 
task order contract with Ciorba Group, Inc. for professional engineering services. 
Village staff negotiated the scope of work with Ciorba Group, Inc. to provide 
preliminary and design engineering services for this project. 

  
Programs, Departments 
 or Groups Affected 

Public Works and Forest Preserve District of Cook County 

  
Fiscal Impact: $61,969.00 
  
Source of Funds: 2021 Enterprise Fund Account Number 40-50-33-55-2140 
  

Workload Impact: The Public Works Department as part of their normal work activities will perform 
the management and implementation of the project. 

  
Administrator 
Recommendation: 

Approval as presented. 

  
Second Reading: Not Required 
  
Special Considerations 
or Requirements: 

None 
 

  
 



RESOLUTION 21-55 
 

AUTHORIZING A TASK ORDER WITH CIORBA GROUP, INC.  
FOR ALBERT DAVIS WATER MAIN IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

 
  

WHEREAS, the Village of Morton Grove (Village), located in Cook County, Illinois, is a home 

rule unit of government under the provisions of Article 7 of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois, 

can exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government affairs, including but not 

limited to the power to tax, purchase, and incur debt; and 

 WHEREAS, the Public Works Department has prioritized the replacement of the water main 

crossing under North Branch Chicago River in order to reduce vulnerability of the distribution system to 

supply water to its customers on the east side of the Village; and 

WHEREAS, the water main referred to as Albert Davis water main is aligned with Albert Avenue 

on the west side of the river, Davis Street on the east side of the river and extends through the Cook 

County Forest Preserve  District where it crosses the river; and 

 WHEREAS, the segment of the Albert Davis water main within the forest preserve has exceeded 

its service life and has a break history that distinguishes it as a high priority for replacement; and 

WHEREAS, design engineering is planned for 2021 and 2022 and construction is planned for 

2022; and 

WHEREAS, the design engineering needs exceed the expertise and capacity of the Village’s 

Engineering Division staff; and 

WHEREAS, Resolution 18-08, approved on January 22, 2018, authorized staff to negotiate a task 

order contract with Ciorba Group, Inc. for professional engineering services; and 

WHEREAS, Ciorba Group, Inc. has satisfactorily investigated water infrastructure for Village 

projects in the past; and 

WHEREAS, Village staff negotiated the scope of work with Ciorba Group, Inc. valued at 

$61,969.00 to provide design engineering services for Albert Davis Water Main Improvements Project, 

which is described in more detail in Exhibit “A”; and 

WHEREAS, funding for the above work for the lump sum amount of $190,500 is available in the 

2021 Adopted Budget Enterprise Fund Account Number 40-50-33-55-2140. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 

THE VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS AS FOLLOWS: 

  



SECTION 1: The Corporate Authorities do hereby incorporate the foregoing WHEREAS clauses 

into this Resolution as though fully set forth therein thereby making the findings as hereinabove set forth. 

 SECTION 2: The Corporate Authorities hereby authorize the Village Administrator to execute a 

task order for Ciorba Group, Inc. to complete design engineering for Albert Davis Water Main 

Improvements Project in the not-to-exceed amount of $61,969.00. 

SECTION 3: This Resolution shall be in full force and effect upon its passage and approval. 

 
PASSED this 13th day of September 2021 

Trustee Grear    

Trustee Khan    

Trustee Minx    

Trustee Travis    

Trustee Thill    

Trustee Witko    

 

APPROVED by me this 13th day of September 2021 

 
____________________________________ 
Daniel P. DiMaria, Village President 
Village of Morton Grove 
Cook County, Illinois 

 
APPROVED and FILED in my office this 
14th day of September 2021 
 
 
       
Eileen Scanlon Harford, Village Clerk 
Village of Morton Grove 
Cook County, Illinois 



  Village of Morton Grove 

 

 

Form Revision: 4/6/11 1 of 1 Attachment 3 

Issued: 8/18/2021 

Attachment C 

 

TASK ORDER 

In accordance with Article 35 of the Consulting Services Contract dated 11/1/2015 (“Contract”) 

between the Village of Morton Grove (“VILLAGE”) and Ciorba Group, Inc. (“CONSULTANT”), 

the CONSULTANT is authorized by the VILLAGE to perform the following task order as follows: 

1 Contracted Services:  

Prepare design plans for Albert Davis Water Main Improvements, water main replacement under 

the North Branch of the Chicago River through Forest Preserve District of Cook County 

property. 

2 Time of Performance (attach schedule if appropriate):  

See attached schedule. 

3 CONSULTANT’s Compensation: 

Not-to-exceed $61,969.00. 

All other terms and conditions remain unchanged. 

VILLAGE  CONSULTANT 

   

Signature  Signature 

Ralph E. Czerwinski  Gerald W. Heimsoth 

       Village Administrator  Chief Executive Officer 

   

Date  Date 

 

EXHIBIT "A"



   

TASK ORDER 39 

ALBERT DAVIS WATER MAIN IMPROVEMENTS 

SCOPE OF WORK AND FEE 

8/18/2021 

 
The Village of Morton Grove plans to replace the existing 12” water main through the Cook County 

Forest Preserve, located between the walking path at behind the Albert Avenue properties on the west 

and the Davis Street PRV on the east.  In order to minimize tree impacts, Ciorba will design the project to 

utilize directional drilling technology and will analyze options for using ductile iron, PVC, and HDPE to 

achieve a successful project.   

 

The following tasks will be performed as part of this task order:  
 

• Topographic survey of project limits  

• Water main alignment and constructability technical memo. 

• Design of water main replacement.   

• Preparation of 75% Project Documents and Cost Estimate, including those listed below  

• Preparation of 100% Project Documents and Cost Estimate  

• Two meetings with the Village during the design (1-Combination Site Visit & Kickoff Meeting, 1-
75% Final Plan Review) 

• Two meetings with the Forest Preserve District of Cook County (FPDCC) 

• One meeting with the Park View School 

• Geotechnical investigation and report 

• Wetland delineation and report 

• Permitting: MWRD, USACE, IEPA Water, IEPA Sewer, FPDCC 

OPEN CUT: 600’ 

DIR. DRILL: 1,150’ 

EXHIBIT "A"



   

• It is assumed that no easements or ROW acquisition will be required but that Ciorba will develop 
License Area Exhibits for agreements with the FPDCC. 
 

The Project Documents are proposed to include:  
 
Plans  
Cover Sheet 
Legend and General Notes 
Summary of Quantities 
Alignment, Ties & Benchmarks 
Existing Conditions and Removal Plan 
Proposed Water Main Plan and Profile 
Erosion Control and Landscaping Plan 
Municipal Details 
IDOT Details 
Cross Sections 

Specifications  
Cover 
Table of Contents 
Invitation for Bids 
Notice to Bidders 
Contractor’s Proposal 
Contract 
General Provisions 
Special Provisions 
Index for Supplemental Specifications 
IDOT Check Sheet for Recurring Special Provisions 
BDE Special Provisions 
Reference Drawings 
Project Drawings 
 
Ciorba’s engineering fee for this work order will be $61,969.00 calculated based on hourly rates as 
shown in the following tables.  It is assumed the Village will coordinate this maintenance improvement 
directly with FPDCC and the Park View School with the technical assistance of Ciorba Group.  It is also 
assumed that no easements or ROW acquisition will be required for the proposed work.   It is assumed 
that a license agreement will be required from the Forest Preserve. 
 

EXHIBIT "A"



Cost Estimate of
Consultant Services 
(Direct Labor Multiple)

Firm Ciorba Group, Inc Date 08/18/21
Client Village of Morton Grove

County Cook
Job No. Albert Davis WM

DIRECT SERVICES % OF
ITEM MANHOURS PAYROLL COSTS BY TOTAL GRAND

OTHERS TOTAL
(A) (B) (D) (E) (C+D+E)

Meetings, Data Collection & Coordination 34 6,138.00$          115.00$             6,253.00$          10.09%
Topographic Survey 50 5,924.00$          325.00$             6,249.00$          10.08%
Water Resources 219 25,853.00$        25,853.00$        41.72%
Engineering Plans 64 10,112.00$        10,112.00$        16.32%
Construction Engineering / Phase III Assis. 8 1,496.00$          1,496.00$          2.41%
QC/QA 8 1,680.00$          1,680.00$          2.71%
Project Management & Administration 16 3,176.00$          3,176.00$          5.13%
Soil & Material Consultants 3,950.00$          3,950.00$          6.37%
Applied Ecological Services 3,200.00$          3,200.00$          5.16%

TOTALS 399 54,379.00$        440.00$             7,150.00$          61,969.00$        100.00%

PRINTED 8/18/2021, 2:34 PM

EXHIBIT "A"



Ta
sk

Su
b-

Ta
sk

A
ct

iv
ity

Grand 
Total Se

ni
or

 P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
er

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er

Se
ni

or
 E

ng
in

ee
r

En
gi

ne
er

 I

Se
ni

or
 T

ec
hn

ic
ia

n

Te
ch

ni
ci

an

399 30 105 142 68 50 4

1. Task Total: 34 10 18 6
 
 

010 Subtotal: 20 10 10
 
8 4 4

8 4 4

4 2 2
 
 

011 Subtotal: 14 8 6
 
6 4 2

Coordination with FPDCC 4 4

4 4
 
 

2. Task Total: 50 2 44 4
 
 

020 Subtotal: 46 2 40 4
 

Horizontal Topography 44 40 4

Field Review of Existing Conditions 2 2
 
 

021 Subtotal: 4 4
 

Base Sheet Development 4 4
 
 
 
 

3. Task Total: 219 2 35 114 68
 
 

031 Subtotal: 26 14 12
 

Erosion and Sediment Control Plans 18 10 8

Landscaping Plans 8 4 4
 
 

032 Subtotal: 136 30 58 48
 

Water System Alternatives Tech Memo 12 12

Water Main Design 40 10 20 10

Water Main Plan and Profile Sheets 80 8 36 36

Water Main Details 4 2 2
 
 

035 Subtotal: 57 2 5 42 8
 

Permit - USACE (wetland impacts in FPDCC) 34 2 32

Permit - IEPA (Water) 8 2 6

Permit - NPDES 5 1 4

Permit - FPDCC 10 2 4 4
 
 
 
 

Stormwater Facility Design

Water Main System

Permits

Meetings with Village - (2 mtgs x 2 hrs/mtg)

Coordination with Village

Meetings, Data Collection & Coordination

Coordination

Topographic Survey

Field Survey

Meetings with FPDCC - (2 mtgs x 2 hrs/mtg)
Meetings with School - (1 mtgs x 2 hrs/mtg)

Coordination with Utilities

Water Resources

Meetings

Process Survey Information

STAFF HOURS
Village of Morton Grove

Albert Davis Water Main Improvements

M:\Markets and Clients\IL\Municipalities\Morton_Grove\Proposals\P020458.39_AlbertDavisWM\Confidentidal\Albert Davis Improvements CECS.xlsm
Work Breakdown Structure
8/18/2021 Page 1 of 2

EXHIBIT "A"



Ta
sk

Su
b-

Ta
sk

A
ct

iv
ity

Grand 
Total Se

ni
or

 P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
er

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er

Se
ni

or
 E

ng
in

ee
r

En
gi

ne
er

 I

Se
ni

or
 T

ec
hn

ic
ia

n

Te
ch

ni
ci

an

STAFF HOURS
Village of Morton Grove

Albert Davis Water Main Improvements

4. Task Total: 64 2 36 20 6
 
 

055 Subtotal: 10 2 2 6
 

Title Sheet 2 1 1

Alignment, Ties and Benchmarks 6 6

General Notes 2 1 1
 
 

058 Subtotal: 24 8 16
 

Quantities (Water Resources) 24 8 16
 
 

059 Subtotal: 30 2 26 2
 

Specifications (Water Resources) 20 20

Estimate of Time (Pre-final & Final) 2 2

Estimate of Cost (Pre-final & Final) 8 2 4 2
 
 
 
 

5. Task Total: 8 8
 
 

087 Subtotal: 8 8
 

Assistance During Bidding 8 8
 
 
 
 

6. Task Total: 8 8
 
 

090 Subtotal: 8 8
 

Water Resources 8 8
 
 
 
 

7. Task Total: 16 8 8
 
 

100 Subtotal: 16 8 8
 

Project Administration 8 8

Project Management 8 8
 
 
 
 

Contract Plans

Engineering Plans

Quantity Calculations

Specifications & Estimates

Project Management & Administration

QC/QA

QC/QA

Construction Engineering / Phase III Assis.

Project Management & Administration

Construction Assistance

M:\Markets and Clients\IL\Municipalities\Morton_Grove\Proposals\P020458.39_AlbertDavisWM\Confidentidal\Albert Davis Improvements CECS.xlsm
Work Breakdown Structure
8/18/2021 Page 2 of 2

EXHIBIT "A"



FIRM NAME Ciorba Group, Inc. DATE 08/18/21
PRIME/SUPPLEMENT Prime
Client Village of Morton Grove

ESCALATION FACTOR 0.00%

CLASSIFICATION CURRENT RATE ESCALATED RATE

Senior Project Manager $210.00 $210.00
Project Manager $187.00 $187.00
Senior Project Engineer $155.00 $155.00
Senior Engineer $112.00 $112.00
Engineer II $98.00 $98.00
Engineer I $90.00 $90.00
Senior Technician $120.00 $120.00
Technician $105.00 $105.00

Printed 8/18/2021 9:05 AM

EXHIBIT "A"



Meetings, Data Collection & Coordination

Description Unit Unit Cost Quantity Extended Cost

Vehicle (mileage) mile 0.575$                 200 115.00$               

 

Total: 115.00$               

  

 

Topographic Survey  
 

Description Unit Unit Cost Quantity Extended Cost

Vehicle (day) day 65.00$                 5 325.00$               

 

Total: 325.00$               

IN-HOUSE DIRECT COSTS 
Village of Morton Grove

Albert Davis Water Main Improvements
PHASE II

Albert Davis Improvements CECS.xlsm: InHouseDC

EXHIBIT "A"



 

 

PROJECT SCHEDULE 
 

ALBERT DAVIS WATER MAIN 
VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE 

 

Phase Task Duration Start Finish 

Design  
(15 Weeks) 

Village Board Approval 1d 9/13/21 

Kickoff Meeting 1d 9/20/21 

Water Main Alignment and 
Constructability Tech 
Memo 

2w 9/20/21 10/1/21 

Tech Memo Submittal 1d 10/1/21 

Village Review 2w 10/4/21 10/15/21 

Survey 5d 10/18/21 10/22/21 

75% Design 4w 10/25/21 11/19/21 

75% Design Submittal 1d 11/19/21 

Village Review 2w 11/22/21 12/3/21 

Final Design 3w 12/6/21 12/23/21 

100% Design Submittal 1d 12/23/21 

Permitting 
(9 Weeks) 

IEPA Permit Submittal 1d 12/23/21 

IEPA Agency Review & 
Approval 
Forest Preserve Final 
Coordination  

9w 12/27/21 2/25/21 

Bid (TBD) Advertise / Bid Opening TBD TBD 

 

EXHIBIT "A"



Submitted by: Ralph E. Czerwinski, Village Administrator 
Reviewed by: Teresa Hoffman Liston, Corporation Counsel  
Reviewed by: Joe Dahm, Director Public Works 
Prepared by: Chris Tomich, Village Engineer 
   

Legislative Summary  
 

Resolution 21-56 
 

AUTHORIZATION FOR THE EXECUTION OF CONTRACT WITH THE ILLINOIS DEPARTMENT 
OF TRANSPORTATION FOR MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC SIGNALS 

Introduced: September 13, 2021 
  
Purpose: To authorize the Village President to execute an intergovernmental agreement 

with the Illinois Department of Transportation (IDOT) related to traffic signal 
maintenance and energy cost responsibilities for traffic signals along State routes 
within Morton Grove.  

  
Background: IDOT and the Village have a mutual interest in and the maintenance and 

apportionment of shared energy costs for traffic signals along State highways 
within Morton Grove.  A 10-year intergovernmental agreement between IDOT 
and the Village specifying these maintenance and financial responsibilities 
expired on June 30, 2021. IDOT submitted a new 10-year agreement for 
execution, which is marked as Attachment “A”.  

The Village pays a quarterly invoice to IDOT for IDOT to maintain certain 
traffic signals and for energy costs. The Village  to maintain traffic signals within 
the Village on the following State highways: Golf Road, Dempster Street, Oakton 
Street, and Waukegan Road. 

  
Programs, Departments 
 or Groups Affected 

Public Works 

  
Fiscal Impact: The estimated share of the Village’s 2022 annual maintenance and energy cost is 

$25,000 and will be modified periodically based upon IDOT’s procurement 
policy for traffic signal maintenance and energy supply. 

  
Source of Funds: 2021 Motor Fuel Tax Fund Account Number 03-50-60-55-4170 
  

Workload Impact: Negligible. 
  
Administrator 
Recommendation: 

Approval as presented. 

  
Second Reading: Not Required 
  
Special Considerations 
or Requirements: 

A funding award by the Illinois Department of Transportation would be accepted 
by the Village through a future resolution. 
 

  
 



RESOLUTION 21-56 
 

AUTHORIZATION FOR THE EXECUTION OF CONTRACT WITH THE ILLINOIS 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC SIGNALS 

 
  

WHEREAS, the Village of Morton Grove (Village), located in Cook County, Illinois, is a home 

rule unit of government under the provisions of Article 7 of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois, 

can exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government affairs, including but not 

limited to the power to tax, purchase, and incur debt; and 

 WHEREAS, the Illinois Department of Transportation (IDOT) and the Village share in the 

maintenance and financial responsibilities for traffic signals along State routes within Morton Grove; and 

WHEREAS, a 10-year agreement between IDOT and the Village, approved in 2012, for traffic 

signal maintenance expired June 30, 2021; and 

 WHEREAS, the Illinois Department of Transportation provided a new 10-year agreement to the 

Village of Morton Grove detailing the maintenance and energy responsibilities for traffic signals along 

State routes within the Village’s boundaries; and 

 WHEREAS, Public Works staff estimates the annual maintenance and energy cost, based on 

historical costs, to be less than $25,000; and 

WHEREAS, funding for the above work is available in the 2021 Adopted Budget Motor Fuel Tax 

Fund Account Number 03-50-60-55-4170 and can be appropriated to satisfy funding needs in future years 

of this agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

OF THE VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS AS FOLLOWS: 

  

SECTION 1: The Corporate Authorities do hereby incorporate the foregoing WHEREAS clauses 

into this Resolution as though fully set forth therein thereby making the findings as hereinabove set forth. 

 SECTION 2: The Village President is authorized to execute three original agreements with the 

Illinois Department of Transportation included in Attachment “A” for traffic signals on State highways 

within the corporate limits of the Village of Morton Grove. 

SECTION 3: The Village Administrator and Director of Public Works or their designees are 

authorized to take all steps necessary to implement said agreements. 

 SECTION 4: This Resolution shall be in full force and effect upon its passage and approval. 

 
PASSED this 13th day of September 2021 



Trustee Grear    

Trustee Khan    

Trustee Minx    

Trustee Travis    

Trustee Thill    

Trustee Witko    

 

APPROVED by me this 13th day of September 2021 

 
____________________________________ 
Daniel P. DiMaria, Village President 
Village of Morton Grove 
Cook County, Illinois 

 
APPROVED and FILED in my office this 
14th day of September 2021 
 
 
       
Eileen Scanlon Harford, Village Clerk 
Village of Morton Grove 
Cook County, Illinois 



ATTACHMENT "A"



ATTACHMENT "A"



ATTACHMENT "A"



ATTACHMENT "A"



ATTACHMENT "A"



ATTACHMENT "A"



ATTACHMENT "A"



ATTACHMENT "A"



ATTACHMENT "A"



Submitted by: Ralph E. Czerwinski, Village Administrator 
Reviewed by: Teresa Hoffman Liston, Corporation Counsel  
Reviewed by: Joe Dahm, Director Public Works 
Prepared by: Chris Tomich, Village Engineer 
   

Legislative Summary  
 

Resolution 21-57 
 

FORMALIZING THE VILLAGE’S ENDORSEMENT FOR THE PROJECT DEVELOPMENT  
OF A PEDESTRIAN FACILITY ALONG OAKTON STREET   

 
 

Introduced: September 13, 2021 
  
Purpose: To express project support and to authorize submittal of a construction funding 

application for a pedestrian facility along Oakton Street.  
  
Background: Village staff is developing an improvement to provide a pedestrian facility along 

Oakton Street within the Villages of Morton Grove, Niles, and Skokie. These 
Villages are also trying to assemble funding sources for the engineering and 
construction expenses. The project cost is estimated to be more than $4,000,000. 
The Illinois Safe Routes to School is a funding program that can provide up to 
$250,000 for construction costs and is accepting applications until September 30, 
2021. The application process requires a resolution to authorize the financial 
support of the sponsoring agency. 

  
Programs, Departments 
 or Groups Affected 

Administration and Public Works 

  
Fiscal Impact: None 
  
Source of Funds: N/A 
  

Workload Impact: Negligible. 
  
Administrator 
Recommendation: 

Approval as presented. 

  
Second Reading: Not Required 
  
Special Considerations 
or Requirements: 

A funding award by the Illinois Department of Transportation would be accepted 
by the Village through a future resolution. 
 

  
 



RESOLUTION 21- 57 
 

FORMALIZING THE VILLAGE’S ENDORSEMENT FOR THE PROJECT DEVELOPMENT 
OF A PEDESTRIAN FACILITY ALONG OAKTON STREET  

 
  

WHEREAS, the Village of Morton Grove (Village), located in Cook County, Illinois, is a home 

rule unit of government under the provisions of Article 7 of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois, 

can exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government affairs, including but not 

limited to the power to tax, purchase, and incur debt; and 

 WHEREAS, Village of Morton Grove, Village of Niles and Village of Skokie (“Villages”) share a 

common goal to cooperatively develop a continuous pedestrian facility along Oakton Street within their 

communities to provide a longer walkable corridor; and 

WHEREAS, project costs are conceptually estimated to exceed $4,000,000; and 

 WHEREAS, the Illinois Department of Transportation Safe Routes to School funding program 

offers eighty percent of funding to a maximum amount of $250,000 for construction improvements to 

improve conditions for the walk or bike to school; and 

WHEREAS, the purpose of the project along Oakton Street is aligned with the goals of Safe 

Routes to School Program; and 

WHEREAS, the Safe Routes to School program application requires participation of an eligible 

elementary school district and, further, a sponsoring agency to administer all project components and to 

commit to financially supporting the project; and 

WHEREAS, Elementary School District 69 has accepted the Villages’ invitation to participate in 

the application process and to support the project; and 

WHEREAS, Morton Grove is acting as lead agency for the Villages in the development of 

preliminary and design engineering and has adequate resources to administer and fiscally support the 

project; and 

WHEREAS, the Villages will need to establish a future agreement whether Morton Grove or 

Skokie will act as the lead agency for construction of the improvements; and 

WHEREAS, the funding application requires a resolution to authorize the financial support of the 

sponsoring agency. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 

THE VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS AS FOLLOWS: 

  



SECTION 1: The Corporate Authorities do hereby incorporate the foregoing WHEREAS clauses 

into this Resolution as though fully set forth therein thereby making the findings as hereinabove set forth. 

 SECTION 2: The Corporate Authorities support the project development of a pedestrian facility 

along Oakton Street. 

SECTION 3.  The Village Administrator or his designee is authorized to work cooperatively with 

Village of Niles, Village of Skokie, Elementary School District 69 and any other eligible public agencies 

to develop and submit Illinois Safety Routes to School Funding Application to Illinois Department of 

Transportation for construction funding for a pedestrian facility along Oakton Street. 

 SECTION 4: This Resolution shall be in full force and effect upon its passage and approval. 

 
PASSED this 13th day of September 2021 

Trustee Grear    

Trustee Khan    

Trustee Minx    

Trustee Travis    

Trustee Thill    

Trustee Witko    

 

APPROVED by me this 13th day of September 2021 

 
____________________________________ 
Daniel P. DiMaria, Village President 
Village of Morton Grove 
Cook County, Illinois 

 
APPROVED and FILED in my office this 
14th day of September 2021 
 
 
       
Eileen Scanlon Harford, Village Clerk 
Village of Morton Grove 
Cook County, Illinois 



   
 

Submitted by: Ralph E. Czerwinski, Village Administrator 
Reviewed by: Teresa Hoffman Liston, Corporation Counsel  
Reviewed by: Joe Dahm, Director Public Works 
Prepared by: Andy Andrews, Lead Mechanic   
   

Legislative Summary 
 

Resolution 21-58 
 

AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF ONE NEW INTERNATIONAL  
DUMP TRUCK WITH SPREADER AND SNOWPLOW FROM  

RUSH TRUCK CENTER OF SPRINGFIELD, ILLINOIS 
 
  

Introduced: September 13, 2021 
  
Purpose: To authorize the purchase of one (1) new International Dump Truck with new 

Salt Spreader and Plow to replace the current 1998 dump truck. 
  
Background: Public Works routinely reviews vehicles and equipment for fuel economy, safety, 

dependability, age, and excessive repair cost and has recommended the Village 
replace its 1998 Dump Truck #36.  
The purchase of a new International Dump Truck with Salt Spreader and Plow for 
the Public Works Department was competitively bid through to two separate 
procurement agencies, the Illinois Central Management Agency’s Joint 
Purchasing Program, Contract #19416CMS for the International Cab and Chassis 
and Sourcewell Procurement, Contract #080818-HPI for the Salt Spreader and 
Plow.(see Exhibit A)  Rush Truck Center, 3441 Gatlin Drive, Springfield, Illinois 
62707 was selected as the low bid vendor in the amount of $192,644.00. Funding 
for this purchase is available in the 2021 Enterprise fund in the amount of 
$210,000.00.  

  
Programs, Departments 
 or Groups Affected 

Public Works Department, Village Residents 

  
Fiscal Impact: $192,644.00 
  
Source of Funds: Account No. 405034-572030  
  

Workload Impact: The management and supervision of this purchase will be performed by the 
Vehicle Maintenance Division of Public Works as part of their normal operations. 

  
Administrator 
Recommendation: 

Approval as presented. 

  
Second Reading: Not Required 
  
Special Considerations 
or Requirements: 

None 
 



RESOLUTION 21-58 
 

AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF ONE NEW INTERNATIONAL  
DUMP TRUCK WITH SPREADER AND SNOWPLOW  

FROM RUSH TRUCK CENTER OF SPRINGFIELD, ILLINOIS 
 

WHEREAS, the Village of Morton Grove (VILLAGE), located in Cook County, Illinois, is a 

home rule unit of government under the provisions of Article 7 of the 1970 Constitution of the State of 

Illinois, can exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government affairs, 

including but not limited to the power to tax and incur debt; and 

 WHEREAS, the Public Works Department routinely reviews vehicles and equipment for fuel 

economy, safety, dependability, age, and excessive repair cost and recommends replacing or 

eliminating equipment that no longer meets the requirements of the Department; and 

 WHEREAS, the Public Works Department has determined the 1998, Dump Truck No. 36 has 

out lived its useful life and is no longer dependable; and 

WHEREAS, the purchase of a new International Dump Truck with Salt Spreader and Plow for 

the Public Works Department was competitively bid through to two separate municipal procurement 

agencies; the Illinois Central Management Agency’s Joint Purchasing Program, Contract #19416CMS 

for the International Truck, Cab and Chassis and Sourcewell Procurement, Contract #080818-HPI for 

the Salt Spreader and Plow (see Exhibit A; and 

 WHEREAS, Rush Truck Center, 3441 Gatlin Drive, Springfield, Illinois 62707 was selected 

the low bid vendor with the following price:  

                 Rush Truck Center                 Contract #19416 and #080818             Amount 
              
            2022 International Dump Truck/Plow w/Salt Spreader                        $192,644.00                                           

and, 
 

 WHEREAS, the Village Board approved the 2021 budget which provides funding in the Water 

Enterprise Fund, Account No. 405033-572030 to replace Truck No. 36; and  

WHEREAS, the Village Administrator and staff recommends the Village Board approve and 

authorize a contract for the purchase of one (1) new International Dump Truck from Rush Truck 

Center, 3441 Gatlin Drive, Springfield, Illinois 62707, for the purchase price of $192,644.00. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF 

TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS AS 

FOLLOWS: 



SECTION 1: The Corporate Authorities do hereby incorporate the foregoing WHEREAS 

clauses into this Resolution as though fully set forth therein thereby making the findings as 

hereinabove set forth. 

SECTION 2:  The Village Administrator is hereby authorized to execute a contract with Rush 

Truck Center for the purchase of one (1) new International Dump Truck, Spreader and Plow for the 

purchase price of $192,644.00.00. 

SECTION 3: The Village Administrator and Public Works Director and/ or his designee is/are 

authorized to take all steps necessary to implement this purchase. 

SECTION 4:  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and upon its passage and 

approval. 

Passed this 13th day of September 2021 

Trustee Grear    

Trustee Khan    

Trustee Minx    

Trustee Travis    

Trustee Thill    

Trustee Witko    

 
Approved by me this 13th day of September 2021 
 
 

_____________________________ 
Daniel P. DiMaria, Village President 
Village of Morton Grove 
Cook County, Illinois 

Attested and Filed in my office 
This 14th day of September 2021 
 
 
________________________________ 
Eileen Scanlon Harford, Village Clerk 
Village of Morton Grove 
Cook County, Illinois 



EXHIBIT A Proposal 

 










	1 Agenda September 13, 2021
	2 Minutes_13_Aug-9-2021
	8-25-21 special meeting minutes
	9d National Prepardness Week
	9e Constitution Week
	9fa Res 21-59 LS - Honorary Street sign
	9fb Resolution Honorary Street Sign - REC_
	12a1a LS Ord 21-07 ZH
	12a1b ORD 21-07 Beckwith Final Plat Acceptance 2109081
	12a1c ALL EXHIBITS COMBINED
	EXHIBIT D.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	6729 24x36 AB Plans-AB-1
	6729 24x36 AB Plans-AB-2


	EXHIBIT E.pdf
	Beckwith Crossing Cover Page
	Beckwith Crossings Declarations FINAL VERSION 6-5-20


	12f1a Res 21-55 LS - Albert Davis WM Replacement
	12f1b RES 21-55 - Albert Davis WM Replacement
	Eileen Scanlon Harford, Village Clerk

	12f1c RES 21-55 - EXHIBIT Albert Davis WM Replacement
	12f2a Res 21-56  LS - IDOT IGA Traffic Signal Maintenance
	12f2b Res 21-56 - IDOT IGA Traffic Signal Maintenance
	Eileen Scanlon Harford, Village Clerk

	12f2c Res 21-56 - EXHIBIT IDOT IGA Traffic Signal Maintenance
	12f3a  Res 21-57 LS - Oakton Street SRTS Support
	12f3b RES 21-57 - Oakton Street SRTS Support
	Eileen Scanlon Harford, Village Clerk

	12f4a Res 21-58 LS -2021- International Dump
	AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF ONE NEW INTERNATIONAL
	DUMP TRUCK WITH SPREADER AND SNOWPLOW FROM
	RUSH TRUCK CENTER OF SPRINGFIELD, ILLINOIS

	12f4b Res 21-58 2021-International Dump- Resolution
	RESOLUTION 21-58
	AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF ONE NEW INTERNATIONAL
	DUMP TRUCK WITH SPREADER AND SNOWPLOW
	FROM RUSH TRUCK CENTER OF SPRINGFIELD, ILLINOIS
	Approved by me this 13th day of September 2021
	Daniel P. DiMaria, Village President
	Attested and Filed in my office

	12f4c Exhibit A
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



